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Explanatory Note

Materion Corporation (the Company) is filing thismended Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (FormQ®,) for the quarterly peric
ended September 27, 2013 because the Consolidatadckal Statements previously reported in the @abForm 109 for the quarterl
period ended September 27, 2013 should no longezlieel upon due to errors in the reconciliatioragfhysical inventory counts taken dul
the second and third quarter of 2013 that weredwgsttified until the fourth quarter 2013. As a riésii the errors, cost of sales was unders’
by $0.7 million and net income was overstated byl $dillion in the quarter ended September 27, 20hBe cost of sales was understate:
$7.5 million and net income was overstated by $4dillon, or $0.24 per share, diluted, in the ninenth period ended September 27, 2013.

On February 24, 2014, the Audit Committee of thenPany's Board of Directors approved managemeaetommendation to restate
Consolidated Financial Statements for the threetmamd ninemonth periods ended September 27, 2013 by filinguaendment to tl
Original Form 10-Q after consulting with the fulbBrd of Directors and Ernst & Young LLP, the Comganindependent registered pul
accounting firm. The error, including the specifite items on each of the Compasyfinancial statements that were restated, is destir
greater detail in Note Al - Restatement containetthis Form 10-Q/A.

This Form 10-Q/A amends and restates in their e Items 1, 2 and 4 of Part | and Item 6 of Rasf the Original Form 10, anc
no other information in that report is amended bgrdhis Form 10-Q/A continues to speak as of tae @f the Original Form 1Q- and th
Company has not updated disclosures containedrhireeflect any events that occurred at a latez.da




PART | FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MATERION CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

ltem 1. Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements of MaterionpGration and its subsidiaries for the third qeiagind first nine months ended
September 27, 2013 are as follows:

Consolidated Statements of Income -
Third quarter and nine months ended September@®A3 and September 28, 2012

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income -
Third quarter and nine months ended September®A3 and September 28, 2012

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows -
Nine months ended September 27, 2013 and Sept&28pb2012

Consolidated Balance Sheets -
September 27, 2013 and December 31, 2012




Materion Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Income
(Unaudited)

Third Quarter Ended

Sept. 27, 2013

Sept. 28, 2012

Nine Months Ended

Sept. 27, 2013

Sept. 28, 2012

(Thousands, except per share amounts) Restated Restated

Net sales $ 275,43 $ 290,60 $ 880,74 969,31
Cost of sales 230,95: 238,23. 741,93( 814,50°

Gross margin 44,48 52,36¢ 138,81 154,81.
Selling, general and administrative expense 31,80¢ 32,83: 97,91( 98,93¢
Research and development expense 3,19( 3,01¢ 9,901 9,31(
Other—net 4,161 3,12¢ 9,59: 10,84¢

Operating profit 5,32¢ 13,38¢ 21,41: 35,71¢
Interest expense—net 71¢ 77¢ 2,35¢ 2,297

Income before income taxes 4,61 12,61( 19,05¢ 33,42:
Income tax expense (benefit) (379 4,49¢ 3,12¢ 11,26(

Net income $ 499 $ 8,11« $ 15,93: 22,16:

Basic earnings per share:

Net income per share of common stock $ 022 $ 0.4C $ 0.7¢ 1.0¢

Diluted earnings per share:

Net income per share of common stock $ 024 $ 03¢ $ 0.7¢€ 1.07

Cash dividends per share $ 0.08C $ 0.07t $ 0.23¢ 0.15(C

Weighted-average number of shares of common stockitstanding:

Basic 20,60¢ 20,43:. 20,55 20,43«

Diluted 20,93: 20,69: 20,87 20,63¢

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.




Materion Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

(Unaudited)
Third Quarter Ended Nine Months Ended
Sept. 27,2013 Sept. 28,2012  Sept. 27,2013  Sept. 28, 2012

(Thousands) Restated Restated
Net income $ 499 $ 8,11« $ 15,93 $ 22,16:
Other comprehensive income:

Foreign currency translation adjustment 47¢ 1,271 (2,902) 44¢

Derivative and hedging activity, net of tax (428 (521) (273) (85¢)

Pension and post employment benefit adjustmenbfrtaix 1,23% 83t 3,671 2,50¢
Net change in accumulated other comprehensive iacom 1,282 1,58t 49¢ 2,09t
Comprehensive income $ 6,27¢ $ 9,69¢ $ 16,42¢ $ 24,25¢

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.




Materion Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows(Unaudited)

Nine Months Ended

Sept. 27, 2013

Sept. 28, 2012

(Thousands) Restated
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 1593 $ 22,16:
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash puided from (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 30,84 28,92:
Amortization of deferred financing costs in intdregpense 501 487
Stock-based compensation expense 4,10z 4,34:
Changes in assets and liabilities net of acquiredsaets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable 3,122 (20,45)
Decrease (increase) in other receivables 21 4,39:
Decrease (increase) in inventory a3 (23,79
Decrease (increase) in prepaid and other curreetas 2,05¢ (4,852
Decrease (increase) in deferred income taxes 24¢ (812)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and acexpedses (21,216 (22,80
Increase (decrease) in unearned revenue (1,082 (1,316
Increase (decrease) in interest and taxes payable 10¢ (577)
Increase (decrease) in long-term liabilities 1,152 (3,619
Other-net 2,741 54t
Net cash provided from (used in) operating activigs 38,51¢ (7,379
Cash flows from investing activities:
Payments for purchase of property, plant and eqeippm (19,83() (25,339
Payments for mine development (4,407%) (4,997)
Reimbursements for capital equipment under govenhimentracts — 991
Payments for purchase of business net of cashvextei — (3,899
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 23 —
Other investments-net 2C 1,742
Net cash used in investing activities (24,19 (31,489
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance (repayments) of short-tetrh d (13,269 16,50¢
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 70,33 32,30¢
Repayment of long-term debt (62,789 (7,740
Debt issuance costs (1,559 —
Principal payments under capital lease obligations (497 (580)
Repurchase of common stock — (119
Payment of dividends (4,847 (3,089
Issuance of common stock under stock option plans 1,07t 144
Tax benefit from stock compensation realization 1,66¢ 77
Net cash (used in) provided from financing activits (9,879) 37,50¢
Effects of exchange rate changes (34¢) (8)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 4,101 (1,36
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 16,05¢ 12,25¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 20,157 $ 10,89¢

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.




Materion Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(Unaudited)
Sept. 27, 2013 Dec. 31, 2012
(Thousands) Restated
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 20,157 $ 16,05¢
Accounts receivable 121,98 126,48:
Other receivables 384 40t
Inventories 205,30: 206,12!
Prepaid expenses 39,59: 41,68¢
Deferred income taxes 9,19¢ 10,23¢
Total current assets 396,61 400,98¢
Related-party notes receivable 11 51
Long-term deferred income taxes 20,74¢ 19,94¢
Property, plant and equipment—cost 779,87( 779,78!
Less allowances for depreciation, depletion andrénadion (514,567 (507,249
Property, plant and equipment—net 265,30t 272,54
Intangible assets 25,90¢ 28,86¢
Other assets 3,761 3,761
Goodwill 88,75 88,75
Total assets $ 801,11 $ 814,91
Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Current liabilities
Short-term debt $ 36,01 $ 49,43:
Accounts payable 30,97 42,28
Other liabilities and accrued items 50,77¢ 55,81:
Unearned revenue 461 1,54:
Total current liabilities $ 118,22: $ 149,06
Other long-term liabilities 16,51¢ 16,17:
Retirement and post-employment benefits 122,00( 125,97¢
Unearned income 57,66 61,18¢
Long-term income taxes 1,51(C 1,51(C
Deferred income taxes 384 1,13(
Long-term debt 52,42 44,88(
Shareholders’ equity 432,39: 414,99!
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 801110 $ 81491

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.




Materion Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

Note A1 — Restatement

During the fourth quarter 2013, the Company idédifrrors in the second and third quarter 2013ijghyinventory count
reconciliation process at one of its operationth@Advanced Material Technologies reporting segrtieat were not detected by
management's review controls on a timely basis.eFhm's overstated the amount of inventory on Hanfi7.5 million as of the end of the
third quarter 2013 and by $6.8 million as of the efithe second quarter 2013. To correct the eimagentory was reduced by $7.5 million on
the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of Septemb@023,and cost of sales was increased by $0.7omidih the Consolidated Statements of
Income for the three-month period ended Septembe2@13 and $7.5 million in the nine-month perioded September 27, 2013. Income
tax expense was also restated for the reductiorcome before income taxes, with the offset recoalgainst prepaid income taxes on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets. Net income and earpieigshare were restated for the impact of thesgsifor the three-month and nine-
month periods ended September 27, 2013. The Cdasedi Statements of Comprehensive Income for tieettmonth and ninexonth period
ended September 27, 2013 and the Consolidatech&ate of Cash Flows for the nine-month period ersigagtember 27, 2013 were also
restated for the impact of this error.

The restatement corrects the following line itemghie Company's Consolidated Financial Statementhé periods ended September
27, 2013:

Third Quarter Ended September 27, 2013 Nine Months Ended September 27, 2013
Previously Restatement As Previously Restatement As
(Thousands) Reported Adjustment Corrected Reported Adjustment Corrected
Consolidated Statements of Income
Cost of sales $ 230,29 $ 654 $ 230,95. $ 734,44 $ 7,48: % 741,93(
Gross margin 45,13: (654) 44,48: 146,29° (7,489 138,81«
Operating profit 5,98 (654) 5,32¢ 28,89« (7,489 21,41
Income before income taxes 5,267 (654) 4,613 26,53¢ (7,489 19,05¢
Income tax expense (benefit) 144 (529 (379 5,721 (2,599 3,12¢
Net income 5,12z (131 4,992 20,81% (4,885 15,93:
Earnings per share - basic 0.2t (0.09) 0.24 1.01 (0.29) 0.7¢
Earnings per share - diluted 0.24 — 0.24 1.0C (0.29) 0.7€
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
Net income 5,12z (137) 4,992 20,81% (4,885 15,93:
Comprehensive income 6,40¢ (131) 6,274 21,31 (4,885 16,42¢
Nine Months Ended September 27, 2013
Previously Restatement As
(Thousands) Reported Adjustment Corrected
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Net income $ 20,817 $ (4,885 $ 15,93:
Decrease (increase) in inventory (7,496 7,48: (13
Decrease (increase) in prepaids and other curssetsa 4,65¢ (2,599 2,05¢




Materion Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Unaudited)
Nine Months Ended September 27, 2013

Previously Restatement As
(Thousands) Reported Adjustment Corrected
Consolidated Balance Sheets
Inventory $ 212,78:  $ (7,487 $ 205,30:
Prepaid expenses 36,99t 2,59¢ 39,59:
Retained earnings 437,27¢ (4,885 432,39

Footnote B - Inventory, Footnote E - Segment Répgind Footnote Hincome Taxes to the Consolidated Financial Statésrfenthe
period ended September 27, 2013 have also beetie@$d correct this error.

Note A — Accounting Policies

In managemeng’ opinion, the accompanying consolidated finansiatements contain all adjustments necessary septrdairly thi
financial position as of September 27, 2013 andebdwer 31, 2012 and the results of operations ®third quarter and nine months en
September 27, 2013 and September 28, 2012. Alsad@nts were of a normal and recurring nature.

Note B — Inventories (Restated)
Inventories on the Consolidated Balance Sheetsuargnarized as follows:

Sept. 27, 2013 Dec. 31, 2012

(Thousands) Restated
Principally average cost:
Raw materials and supplies $ 43,64¢ $ 42,75:
Work in process 191,77: 203,17¢
Finished goods 53,38t 51,09
Gross inventories 288,80: 297,02
Excess of average cost over LIFO inventory value 83,50 90,89¢
Net inventories $ 20530 $ 206,12




Materion Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

Note C — Pensions and Other Post-employment Benefit

The following is a summary of the third quarter dinst nine months of 2013 and 2012 net periodieddit cost for the domestic pensi
plans (which include the defined benefit plan areldupplemental retirement plans) and the domestiee medical plan.

Pension Benefits Other Benefits
Third Quarter Ended Third Quarter Ended
(Thousands) Sept. 27,2013  Sept. 28, 2012 Sept. 27, 2013  Sept. 28, 2012
Components of net periodic benefit cost
Service cost $ 2,35¢ $ 1,966 $ 7€ % 93
Interest cost 2,35: 2,341 311 36C
Expected return on plan assets (2,99¢) (2,926 — —
Amortization of prior service cost (benefit) (85) (11¢) 29 —
Amortization of net loss 1,951 1,40z — —
Net periodic benefit cost $ 367¢ $ 2,665 $ 41€ $ 45¢
Pension Benefits Other Benefits
Nine Months Ended Nine Months Ended
(Thousands) Sept. 27,2013  Sept. 28, 2012  Sept. 27, 2013  Sept. 28, 2012
Components of net periodic benefit cost
Service cost $ 7,066 $ 590( $ 22¢ % 27¢
Interest cost 7,06( 7,01: 932 1,08(
Expected return on plan assets (8,989 (8,779 — —
Amortization of prior service cost (benefit) (25%) (359) 86 —
Amortization of net loss 5,81¢ 4,20¢ — —

Net periodic benefit cost

$ 10,69 $ 7,981 $ 1,245

$ 1,35¢

The Company made contributions to the domestimddfbenefit pension plan of $9.2 million in thesfinine months of 2013.

Note D — Contingencies

Materion Brush Inc., one of the Compasiywholly owned subsidiaries, is a defendant frametto time in legal proceedings where
plaintiffs allege they have contracted chronic Hemn disease (CBD) or related ailments as a resiuéixposure to beryllium. The Comp:
will record a reserve for CBD or other litigatiorhan a loss from either settlement or verdict idbphte and estimable. Claims filed by third-
party plaintiffs where the alleged exposure ocalipgor to December 31, 2007 may be covered byrarste subject to an annual deduc
of $1.0 million . Reserves are recorded for asdertaims only and defense costs are expensed asedc OneCBD case, which was filed
2012, was outstanding as of the end of the thiattgu 2013. No other CBD cases were filed or disedsduring the first nine months of 2C
A loss reserve of $0.1 million was recorded fosttise as of the end of the third quarter 201%amged from year-end 2012.

The Company has an active environmental compligmmogram and records reserves for the probable afastentified environment
remediation projects. The reserves are establishsedd upon analyses conducted by the Compangineers and outside consultants an
adjusted from time to time based upon ongoing stjdhe difference between actual and estimateld eosl other factors. The reserves
also be affected by rulings and negotiations wétfputatory agencies. The undiscounted reserve balaas $5.0 millioras of the end of ti
third quarter 2013 and $5.3 milliat December 31, 2012. Environmental projects terloetlong term and the final actual remediatiorts

may differ from the amounts currently recorded.






Materion Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

Note E — Segment Reporting (Restated)

Operating profit for the Advanced Material Techrpés segment and the consolidated total were egsfat the third quarter 2013 and
the first nine months of 2013. Assets as of theddrtte third quarter 2013 were also restated fdvakced Material Technologies and the
consolidated total. See Note Al to the Consolid&iedncial Statements.

Advanced
Material Performance Beryllium and Technical All
(Thousands) Technologies Alloys Composites Materials Subtotal Other Total
Third Quarter 2013
Sales to external customers $ 176,29  $ 69,57¢ $ 13,688 $ 15877 $ 27543 $ — % 275,43
Intersegment sales 522 442 67 15€ 1,18¢ — 1,18¢
Operating profit (loss) 4,14¢ 4,52 (3,306) 1,421 6,781 (1,459 5,32¢
Third Quarter 2012
Sales to external customers ¢ 190,50t  $ 68,700 $ 14,41¢  $ 16,97t $  290,60: $ — $ 290,60
Intersegment sales 52C 59¢ 24 11¢ 1,48¢ — 1,48¢
Operating profit (loss) 9,21¢ 5,40¢ (515) 1,13 15,23¢ (1,84) 13,38¢
First Nine Months 2013
Sales to external customers $ 566,15 $ 21843t $ 42,19 % 53,957 $ 880,74« $ — 3 880,74«
Intersegment sales 2,04¢ 1,48¢ 20C 60C 4,33; — 4,33;
Operating profit (loss) 5,211 18,65¢ (3,780 5,24¢ 25,33: (3,920 21,41
Assets 312,11 267,23 142,18 23,73 745,25 55,85: 801,11
First Nine Months 2012
Sales to external customers $ 654,24! $ 216,43 $ 4310: $ 55,45¢ $ 969,24( $ 79 $ 969,31
Intersegment sales 1,691 1,96¢ 574 59C 4,82: — 4,82:
Operating profit (loss) 22,01: 18,34¢ (3,829 4,99t 41,53; (5,819 35,71¢
Assets 366,19 257,82 134,78 23,00 781,89 36,46 818,35

Note F — Stock-based Compensation Expense

Stock-based compensation expense was $1.4 mitlitimei third quarter 2013 and $1.5 milliomthe third quarter 2012. For the first n
months of the year, stock-based compensation egpeas $4.1 million in 2013 and $4.3 million in 2012

The Company granted approximately 147,86ck appreciation rights (SARS) to certain empésyin the first quarter 2013 at a st
price of $28.32 per share. The fair value of theRSAwhich was determined on the grant date usiBtaek-Scholes model, was $12.pdi
share and will be amortized over the vesting peoibithree years . The SARs expire in seven yeara the date of the grant.

The Company granted approximately 42,000 sharesstificted stock units to certain employees infitst quarter 2013 at a weighted-
average fair value of $28.32 per share. The fdirevavas determined using the closing price of then@anys common stock on the grant ¢
and will be amortized over the vesting period ofethyears. The holders of the restricted stock units wilHféit their shares if the
employment is terminated prior to the end of thsting period.

The Company granted approximately 42,000 shar@eidbrmancebased restricted stock units to certain employedhe first quarte
2013 at a fair value of $23.90 per share. Thevalue will be expensed over the vesting periochoée years The final share payout to 1
employees will be based upon the Company’s totarmeto shareholders over the vesting period nedatib a peer group’performance ov
the same period.

The Company received $1.1 million for the exera$eapproximately 69,000 options during the firsherimonths of 2013 an$0.1
million for the exercise of approximately 14,00ptions during the first nine months of 2012. Exss of SARs totaled approximat



120,000 in the first nine months of 2013 and 27,@0Me first nine months of 2012.
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Materion Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

Note G — Other-net
Other-net income (expense) for the third quarter fanst nine months of 2013 and 2012 is summarazbllows:

Third Quarter Ended Nine Months Ended
Sept. 27, Sept. 28, Sept. 27, Sept. 28,
(Thousands) 2013 2012 2013 2012
Foreign currency exchange/translation gain $ 126 % 62¢ $ 1,271 $ 1,04¢
Amortization of intangible assets (1,359 (1,409 (4,000 (4,279
Metal consignment fees (1,640 (2,140 (5,15%) (7,009
Other items (1,289 (210 (1,709 (60¢€)
Total $ (4,167) $ (3,129 $ (9,597) $ (10,84¢)

Note H — Income Taxes (Restated)

The tax benefit of $0.4 million in the third quar013 was calculated by applying a rate of (8.2fainst income before income ta
while the tax expense of $4.5 million in the thindarter 2012 was calculated by applying a rate5of% against the income before inca
taxes in that period.

In the first nine months of 2013, the tax expens®31 million was calculated using an effectivéeraf 16.4%. The tax expense w
$11.3 million in the first nine months of 2012 ahé effective rate was 33.7% in that period.

The differences between the statutory and effectites in the third quarter and first nine monthbaih years was due to the impac
percentage depletion, the production deductioreifor source income and deductions, executive cosgpiem, state and local taxes, disc
events and other factors. The research and expaaten credit for 2013 also reduced the effectaserate in the third quarter and first r
months of 2013.

The tax benefit in the third quarter 2013 includaed favorable discrete items of $0.7 millitmat resulted from the finalization of
2012 federal tax return at a lower liability thahat was previously recorded in the financial staets, the reversal of tax reserves due t
lapse of the statute of limitations, the benefiterf amending a prior year federal tax return ameitems.

The Company recorded a discrete tax benefit of 80l&n in the first quarter 2013 primarily for the resdaend experimentation cre
for 2012. The research and experimentation cred# mot recorded in 2012 as the U.S. Congress diéxtend the credit for 2012 until 1
first quarter 2013 and accounting regulations negjigix expense to be recorded based upon the atvaere in effect as of year end.

Discrete items were a favorable $0.5 milliorthe third quarter 2012 resulting from the fizaltion of the 2011 federal tax return du
that period and the impact of the lapse of theutsgadf limitations. Discrete items for the firsheimonths of 2012 were a net favorabe4
million .

The effective tax rate in the third quarter 201®pto the impact of the discrete items was lowamt the effective rate used in the -
two quarters of 2013 due to revised annual prajesti The impact of the lower rate reduced tax es@emd increased net income $8.€
million , or $0.04 per share, in the third qua26d3.

10




Materion Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

Note | — Depreciation

The Company received $63.5 millidrom the Department of Defense (DoD) in previousqaks for reimbursement of the DoD's st
of the cost of capital equipment acquired by thenany under a Title Il contract. The Company reear the cost of the equipmen
property, plant and equipment and the reimbursesresmunearned income, a liability on the Consdidi@&alance Sheets. The equipment
placed in service during the third quarter 2012 @sdull cost is being depreciated in accordandé wompany policy. The unearned incc
liability is being reduced ratably with the depemn expense recorded over the life of the equiime

In the first nine months of 2013, the depreciatexpense on the equipment subject to reimbursemast$8.5 million. Unearne
income was reduced by $3.5 millipaccordingly, with the offset recorded as a creglitost of sales. Depreciation, depletion and &zaiior
expense on the Consolidated Statement of Cash Fost®wn net of reduction in unearned income.

Note J — Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company measures and records financial institamat their fair values. A fair value hierarchyused for those instrume
measured at fair value that distinguishes betwessuraptions based on market data (observable inpats)the Compang’ assumptior
(unobservable inputs). The hierarchy consists i@ethevels:

Level 1 — Quoted market prices in active marketddentical assets and liabilities;
Level 2 — Inputs other than Level 1 inputs thateitker directly or indirectly observable; and

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs developed using estimates aasdngptions developed by the Company, which refilecse that
market participant would use.

The following table summarizes the financial instents measured at fair value in the Consolidatddrida Sheets as of Septembel
2013:

Fair Value Measurements

Quoted Prices

in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
(Thousands) Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Financial Assets
Directors’ deferred compensation investments $ 50¢ $ 50¢ $ — % —
Foreign currency forward contracts 20z — 20z —
Total $ 711 % 50¢ $ 20z % —
Financial Liabilities
Directors’ deferred compensation liability $ 50¢ $ 50¢ $ — % —
Foreign currency forward contracts 272 — 272 —
Total $ 781 % 50¢ $ 272 $ —

The Company uses a market approach to value tle¢saansd liabilities for outstanding derivative qacts in the table above. Fore
currency forward contracts and precious metal hexgéracts are valued through models that utilizek®t observable inputs including b
spot and forward prices for the same underlyingengies and metals. The carrying values of therotloeking capital items and debt on
Consolidated Balance Sheets approximate theivédires as of September 27, 2013.
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Materion Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

Note K — Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activity

The Company uses derivative contracts to hedgéoperdf its foreign currency and precious metalesxpes. The objectives for us
derivatives in these areas are as follows:

Foreign Currency . The Company sells products to overseas custometteeir local currencies, primarily the euro anehy The
Company uses foreign currency derivatives, maiatyérd contracts and options, to hedge these pat®il sales transactions.
purpose of the hedge program is to protect agéiesteduction in dollar value of the foreign cuegrsales from adverse excha
rate movements. Should the dollar strengthen sagmifly, the decrease in the translated value efdheign currency sales shoulc
partially offset by gains on the hedge contractsp&hding upon the methods used, the hedge contmctimit the benefits from
weakening U.S. dollar.

The use of forward contracts locks in a firm ratel @liminates any downside from an adverse rateemewnt as well as any ben
from a favorable rate movement. The Company mam ftime to time choose to hedge with options omaléan of options known
a collar. These hedging techniques can limit omiglate the downside risk but can allow for somealbrof the benefit from
favorable rate movement to be realized. Unlikeravéod contract, a premium is paid for an optiorilazs, which are a combinati
of a put and call option, may have a net premiutnthey can be structured to be cash neutral. Thapaay will primarily hedg
with forward contracts due to the relationship bestwthe cash outlay and the level of risk.

The use of foreign currency derivative contractgaserned by policies approved by the Audit Comeeitdf the Board of Directo
A team consisting of senior financial managers ewsgi the estimated exposure levels, as defined dgdis, forecasts and ot
internal data, and determines the timing, amountsiastruments to use to hedge that exposure witiénconfines of the polic
Management analyzes the effective hedged rateshenaictual and projected gains and losses on tgifgetransactions against
program objectives, targeted rates and levelssifassumed. Hedge contracts are typically layered different times for a specifi
exposure period in order to minimize the impaatat® movements.

Precious Metals . The Company maintains the majority of its presionetal production requirements on consignmentrdterotc
reduce the working capital investment and the exy@# metal price movements. When a precious npetaluct is fabricated a
ready for shipment to the customer, the metal i€lpased out of consignment at the current markee @nd that price forms t
basis for the price to be charged to the customer.

In certain circumstances, a customer may wanttabbsh the price for the precious metal when tidessorder is placed rather tha
the time of the shipment. Setting the selling pata different date than when the material wowgbrchased potentially create:
exposure to movements in the market price of theaim€herefore, in these limited situations, therany may elect to enter int
forward contract to purchase a stated quantityretipus metal at a fixed price on a specified datthe future. The price in tl
forward contract serves as the basis for the pgucke charged to the customer. By so doing, thingehnd purchase prices
matched and the Company’s market price exposusglisced.

The Company refines precious metahtaining materials for its customers and typicalill purchase the refined metal from
customer at current market prices. In limited ainstances, the customer may want to fix the prideetpaid at the time of the on
as opposed to when the material is refined. Theomesr may also want to fix the price to be paiddarumber of orders over a pel
of time. The Company may then enter into a hedgeract, either a forward contract or a swap, totfig price for the estimat
guantity of refined metal to be purchased thergolycing the exposure to adverse movements in thieetarice of the metal.

The Company will only enter into a derivative catrif there is an underlying identified exposut@ntracts are typically held ur
maturity. The Company does not engage in derivdtaeing activities and does not use derivativessfieculative purposes. The Comg
only uses currency hedge contracts that are dembetrin the same currency as the underlying exposod precious metal hedge contr
denominated in the same metal as the underlyingsexp.

All derivatives are recorded on the balance she#tar fair values. If the derivative is desigratend effective as a cash flow hec
changes in the fair value of the derivative ar@gaized in other comprehensive income (OCI) uhtl hedged item is recognized in earni
The ineffective portion of a derivative’s fair valuf any, is recognized in earnings immediatdiy |
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Materion Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

derivative is not a hedge, changes in the fairevalte adjusted through income. The fair valuesi®fautstanding derivatives are recorde
the balance sheet as assets (if the derivativem again position) or liabilities (if the derive¢s are in a loss position). The fair values
also be classified as short term or long term deipgnupon their maturity dates.

The outstanding foreign currency forward contrdietd a notional value of $15.2 milli@s of September 27, 2013. All of these cont
were designated and effective as cash flow hedfes.fair values of the yen forward contract of $tnitlion was recorded in preps
expenses and the fair value of a loss of $0.3 oniltin the euro forward contracts was recorded in dihbilities and accrued items on
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of September 23, 201

There was no ineffectiveness associated with theracts outstanding at September 27, 2013 anéheffectiveness expense v
recorded in the first nine months of 2013 or 2012.

Changes in the fair value of outstanding cash thedges recorded in OCI totaled $(0.1) million gbt8mber 27, 2013 arD.2 millior
at September 28, 2012. The Company expects toveetfee entire balance in OCI as of September 2¥3 26 income on the Consolida
Statements of Income during the twelve month pelieginning September 28, 2013. See Note L to thes@mlated Financial Statements
additional OCI details.
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Materion Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

Note L — Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

Changes in the components of accumulated other iapsive income, including the amounts reclaskifigt, for the third quarter a
first nine months of 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

Gains and Losses
On Cash Flow Hedges

Pension and Post Foreign

Foreign Employment Currency
(Thousands) Currency Precious Metals Benefits Translation Total
Balance, June 28, 2013 $ 55 % 23 $ (123,789 $ 697 $ (122,519
Other comprehensive income (loss) before
reclassifications (259 — — 47¢ 224
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other
comprehensive income (369) (23 1,89t — 1,50
Net current period other comprehensive income Yloss (629) (23 1,89t 47¢ 1,725
Balance, September 27, 2013 $ (70) $ — $ (121,899 $ 1,17t ¢ (120,789
Balance, June 29, 2012 $ 1,201 $ (1579 $ (102,669 $ 4,12 $ (97,499
Other comprehensive income (loss) before
reclassifications (322 (99) — 1,271 85C
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other
comprehensive income (650 157 1,28¢ — 791
Net current period other comprehensive income Yloss (972) 58 1,28¢ 1,271 1,641
Balance, September 28, 2012 $ 22¢ $ (99) $ (101,389 $ 539 $ (95,85%)
Balance, December 31, 2012 $ 25 % 97 $ (127,54) $ 4,077 $ (123,11
Other comprehensive income (loss) before
reclassifications 617 23 — — 64C
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other
comprehensive income (940 (220) 5,64 (2,9072) 1,68t
Net current period other comprehensive income Yloss (329 (97) 5,64 (2,907) 2,32¢
Balance, September 27, 2013 $ (70) $ — $ (121,89) $ 1,17t $ (120,789
Balance, December 31, 2011 $ 1,39¢ $ 51 $ (105,23¢) $ 4947 $ (98,839
Other comprehensive income (loss) before
reclassifications 357 (649) — — (292
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other
comprehensive income (1,527%) 49¢ 3,852 44¢ 3,27:
Net current period other comprehensive income Yloss (1,170 (150 3,852 44¢ 2,981
Balance, September 28, 2012 $ 22¢ (99) $ (101,389 $ 539 $ (95,859
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Materion Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

Reclassifications from accumulated other comprekierincome of gains and losses on foreign currerash flow hedges are recor
in othernet on the Consolidated Statement of Income whidedgains and losses on precious metal cash flowgdsedre recorded in cosi
sales on the Consolidated Statement of Income.Né¢e K to the Consolidated Financial Statementsaidditional details on cash fl
hedges.

Reclassifications from accumulated other comprelkensicome for pension and post employment benefis included in th
computation of the net periodic pension and posplepment benefit expense. See Note C to the Catwtell Financial Statements
additional details on pension and post employmepéeses.

All amounts in the above table are presented aedgx basis.
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial @dition and Results of Operations

OVERVIEW

We are an integrated producer of hjggrformance advanced engineered materials usedanety of electrical, electronic, thermal
structural applications. Our products are sold mionerous markets, including consumer electromizh)strial components and commer
aerospace, defense and science, energy, meditahative electronics, telecommunications infragtnue and appliance.

Sales in the third quarter 2013 were $275.4 mill@rb% decline from sales in the third quarter 2@@pments to several mark
and applications improved in the third quarter 2@h&r the third quarter 2012, including automotelectronics, medical and ener
However, shipments to the defense and science msokiened due primarily to shipment delays andegoment spending cutbacks, wi
sales to the consumer electronics market declimedtal, although some sectors showed improvengaiés to the industrial components
commercial aerospace and telecommunications infigtstre markets were also lower in the third qua2@l 3 than the third quarter 2012.

Operating profit was $5.3 million in the third qterr2013 compared to $13.4 million in the third gea2012. The reduced profit v
caused by the margin impact of the lower saleslitftaconsolidation costs and other factors. Thieetive tax rate was (8.2)% in the tt
quarter 2013, largely as a result of adjustmentlédqrojections for the year and discrete itenesnmaed during the period. Earnings per s
were $0.24 in the third quarter 2013 and $0.3%@nthird quarter 2012.

Cash flow from operations was $38.5 million in fhiet nine months of 2013. The cash flow was usefiind capital expenditures
$24.2 million, dividends to shareholders of $4.9ioni and a reduction in debt of $5.9 million. Casihhand also increased by $4.1 million.

During the third quarter 2013, we renewed our mesalsignment agreements and extended the matatits @ut one to three ye:

These renewals followed the securing of a new kénglcredit agreement in the second quarter 2048 dltended the maturity date .
increased our borrowing capacity.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Third Quarter Ended Nine Months Ended
Sept. 27, Sept. 28, Sept. 27, Sept. 28,

(Millions, except per share data) 2013 2012 2013 2012
Sales $ 275.2 % 290.¢ $ 880.7 $ 969.%
Operating profit 5.3 13.4 21.4 35.7
Income before income taxes 4.€ 12.€ 19.1 33.¢
Net income 5.C 8.1 15.¢ 22.2
Diluted earnings per share $ 024 $ 0.3¢ $ 0.7¢ $ 1.07

Salesof $275.4 million in the third quarter 2013 weres$ million, or 5%, lower than sales of $290.6 millin the third quarter 201
while sales of $880.7 million in the first nine ntbs of 2013 were $88.6 million, or 9%, lower thabes of $969.3 million in the first ni
months of 2012.

The comparisons of sales in the third quarter @t riine months of 2013 to the respective period®012 were affected by low
precious metal and copper prices, changes in forgigrency translation rates, a change in the amofucustomersupplied precious meta
the discontinuation of a non-strategic product hne other items.

Domestic sales increased approximately 1% in tid thuarter 2013 from the third quarter 2012, betav11% lower in the first nil
months of 2013 than the first nine months of 20&ternational sales were down 17% in the third tpre2013 from the third quarter 2012 .
down 6% in the first nine months of 2013 from tirstfnine months of 2012. Growth in European sdiasng the first nine months of 2C
was offset by softer sales in Asia and other pzfrthe world.
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The sales order entry rate exceeded sales by dpmtety 11% in the third quarter 2013, as the oetdry was the highest quarte
total since the second quarter 2012.

The costs of gold, silver, platinum, palladium amgpper are typically passed through to customeds therefore, movements in -
prices of these metals will affect sales, but maiyhave a proportionate impact on margins. Intédynale manage our business on a value-
added sales basis. Value-added sales is a non-Gagd3ure that deducts the cost of these fhaesgh metals from sales and remove:
potential distortion caused by differences in metdles sold. Valuedded sales were $148.1 million in the third qua2®&13 compared
$152.3 million in the third quarter 2012. Value-addsales were $451.9 million in the first nine nendf 2013, a 3% decrease from the value:
added sales of $464.2 million in the first nine tsof 2012. A reconciliation of sales to valmgded sales is provided in a later section o
Management'’s Discussion and Analysis.

Value-added sales to tlvensumer electronics market , our largest market with approximately 28% of total valueadded sales
the third quarter 2013, were 6% lower in the thjeéhrter 2013 than the third quarter 2012 and 7%tdwthe first nine months of 2013 tt
the first nine months of 2012. The phase-of an application for disk drive arms was ammaiuse for this decline in the third quarter &arsd
nine months of 2013. While the total value-addddssto this diverse market were down, vahaeled shipments of advanced chemical
LED applications and copper-based alloys for o#tpglications have grown over the first nine mor@h2013.

As a material supplier to this market, we selltem¥ing houses and salssembly shops and we are several steps removedtie
enduse consumer. Our sales to this market in a giesiog, therefore, are affected by downstream inugnlevels and production schedt
and changes in market share of the intermediari#snathe supply chain, not necessarily by chanigesales of the final product or
consumer demand for that period. Technologies bange quickly in this market and applications canehshort life spans.

Value-added sales to thedustrial components and commercial aerospace market, after growing 3% in the second quarter 2013
the second quarter 2012, declined 10% in the tirarter 2013 from the third quarter 2012. Vahulded sales to this market in the first |
months of 2013 were 4% lower than vakeided sales in the first nine months of 2012. Aiporof this decline is attributable to a chang
distribution strategies as inventories in the symtlain are worked off. The industrial componemnid aommercial aerospace market is
second largest market, accounting for 17% of oluesadded sales in the third quarter 2013.

Value-added sales to tldefense and science market, after strengthening in the second quarter 2013jréet16% in the third quart
2013 and 9% in the first nine months of 2013 frdme tespective periods in 2012. Sales of opticsdigflense applications have b
significantly impacted by government spending cokisaand shipment delays. Sales of beryllium pragfart defense and science applicat
were also affected by delays in orders being reléasd other factors in the third quarter 2013.

Value-added sales to tmaedical market grew 24% in the third quarter 2013 over the thitdutger 2012 and 10% in the first n
months of 2013 over the first nine months of 20IRis growth was primarily due to increased shipradiotr b77lood glucose test st
applications due to increased market share and fabiors.

Automotive electronics market valueadded sales improved 23% in the third quarter 28018 19% in the first nine months of 2!
over the comparable periods in 2012. The growth dugsto improved market conditions and new appboatevelopment. Valuadded sale
to this market were 11% lower in the third qua@26d.3 than the second quarter 2013 partially dusetsonality. Valuadded sales to t
automotive electronics market were approximateBp T our total value-added sales in the third qrra2013.

Energy market value-added sales grew 13% in the third quarter 2013 thestthird quarter 2012, but declined 2% in thetfimine
months of 2013 from the first nine months of 20IRe growth in the third quarter was due to improskibments to the oil and gas sector
to a lesser extent architectural glass applications

Gross marginwas $44.5 million, or 16% of sales, in the thircdager 2013 compared to $52.4 million, or 18% o&saln the thir
quarter 2012. Gross margin in the first nine momth2013 was $138.8 million, or 16% of sales, ver$t54.8 million, or 16% of sales, in
first nine months of 2012. Gross margin as a paroéralueadded sales was 30% in the third quarter 2013 caedp@® 34% in the thil
quarter 2012. Gross margin was 31% of value-adaésk sn the first nine months of 2013 and 33% dfieadded sales in the first ni
months of 2012.
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A significant portion of the $7.9 million decline gross margin in the third quarter 2013 from thiedtquarter 2012 and the majol
of the $16.0 million decline in gross margin in first nine months of 2013 from the first nine musnbf 2012 was due to the lower value-
added sales volume. The impact of foreign currdrenyslation rates had an unfavorable impact onsgnaargin in the third quarter and f
nine months of 2013, while higher selling pricepartions of our business have provided a margiefiethroughout the first nine months
2013. Manufacturing yields at our precious metarafions were lower in the third quarter and firiste months of 2013 than the compar
periods of 2012. The gross margin for the firsenimonths of 2013 was also unfavorably impacted plpysical inventory loss of $2.3 milli
at our Albuquerque, New Mexico facility in the fipuarter 2013.

Margin in the third quarter 2013 and first nine riienof 2013 benefitted from the improved manufantuperformance of the ne
beryllium plant in Elmore, Ohio. The plant had fiighest output to date in the third quarter 2018 autput levels have increased for
consecutive quarters. Manufacturing performanaaiat.incoln, Rhode Island facility also improveden\the first nine months of 2013.

Facility consolidation and closure costs underghegram initiated in 2012 totaled $0.9 million imetthird quarter 2013 and $
million in the first nine months of 2013. These tsascluded asset writeffs, severance and other related items. Closusts cecorded in cc
of sales totaled $0.8 million in the third quard $0.9 million in the first nine months of 20C3osure costs recorded within selling, ger
and administrative expense were $0.2 million in tthied quarter 2013 and $0.7 million in the firsh@ months of 2013. A net gain of $
million was recorded in otheret during the first nine months of 2013. One srfedility was closed in the fourth quarter 2012 séconi
facility closed during the third quarter 2013 ansl business was relocated to an existing facif@gnsolidation activities at two ott
operations were underway and are scheduled to igleted during 2014. Facility consolidation andscli@ costs totaled $0.6 million in
first nine months of 2012, all of which was recatde selling, general and administrative expensed the second quarter of that year.

Selling, general and administrative (SG&A) expensesre $31.8 million in the third quarter 2013 and®83million in the thir
quarter 2012. SG&A expenses totaled $97.9 millmrl1% of sales, in the first nine months of 2008 $98.9 million, or 10% of sales, in
first nine months of 2012. SG&A expenses were 2f#atie-added sales in both the first nine month0d 3 and 2012.

The expense for the domestic defined benefit pangian was $0.9 million higher in the third quarg&13 than the third quar
2012 and $2.7 million higher in the first nine musabf 2013 than the first half of 2012. The inceeass caused by a reduction in the disc
rate used to value the plan liability, changes ortality assumptions and other factors. The in@dasxpense was recorded mainly in SC
expense and cost of sales.

The incentive compensation expense under baskd plans was $0.5 million lower in the third ea2013 than the third quar
2012 and $0.9 million higher in the first nine mosbf 2013 than the first nine months of 2012. Ehesanges were caused by differenc:
the projected level of annual profit relative te filans’ targets in each year and other factors.

Stock-based compensation expense was $1.4 mitlithei third quarter 2013 and $1.5 million in thedtguarter 2012. Stockase!
compensation expense in the first nine months @B20as $4.1 million compared to $4.3 million in fivet nine months of 2012. Moveme
in stockbased compensation expense between periods megubedcby differences in the number of grants, direvilue of the grants a
other items.

Movements in the exchange rates between perioddtedsin a reduction in the translated value ofiaas foreign currenc
denominated expenses of $0.2 million in the thirdréer 2013 and $0.7 million in the first nine mwnbf 2013 versus the comparable pel
of 2012.

SG&A expenses were $0.4 million lower at our Shandacility in the third quarter 2013 than the thijuarter 2012 partially as
result of adjustment to its cost structure and oth@npower differences.

The plant consolidation program has resulted in 8G&pense savings in the third quarter 2013 arst fime months of 201
Various administrative and management expensedseatdrporate office were also lower in the thirduger 2013 than in the third qua
2012,

Research and development (R&D) expensege $3.2 million in the third quarter 2013 comphte $3.0 million in the third quart
2012. R&D expenses were $9.9 million in the firstenmonths of 2013, a 6% increase over the $9.Bomiéxpense in the first nine month:
2012. The increase was due to various projecthagiebr activity levels across portions of our bess R&D expense was approximately
of sales in the third quarter and first nine morth2013 and 2012.
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Other-net expensotaled $4.2 million in the third quarter 2013 wes$3.1 million in the third quarter 2012. For fhist nine month
of 2013, othemet expense was $9.6 million compared to $10.8ionilin the first nine months of 2012. See Note Ghe Consolidate
Financial Statements for details of the major congms within other-net expense.

The primary cause for the higher expense in thel thuarter 2013 was the otigre bank fees of $0.9 million associated with
renewal of the metal consignment agreements.

The ongoing metal consignment fee of $1.6 milliorthie third quarter 2013 was $0.5 million lowerrttibe fee of $2.1 million in tt
third quarter 2012, while the fee for the first@imonths of 2013 of $5.2 million was $1.8 millimwer than the comparable period of 2(
The lower fee resulted from a reduction in the difyaof metal on hand and lower metal prices.

The net foreign currency exchange and translatéon gas $0.5 million lower in the third quarter 3064nd $0.2 million higher in tl
first nine months of 2013 than the respective miyiof 2012 as a result of the movement in the vafube U.S. dollar versus certain ot
currencies and their impact on transactions anangak and in relation to the strike prices in mayehedge contracts.

Othernet expense also includes amortization expense,deatl expense, gains and losses on the dispositeaf assets, ca
discounts and other items.

Operating profitwas $5.3 million in the third quarter 2013 compated$13.4 million in the third quarter 2012. Theclitee in
operating profit was primarily due to the gross giaimpact from the lower value-added sales andufaaturing yields and other factors.

Operating profit of $21.4 million (2% of sales) time first nine months of 2013 was 40% lower tham dperating profit of $35
million (4% of sales) in the first nine months @12. Operating profit was 5% of valaelded sales in the first nine months of 2013 cosg
to 8% of value-added sales in the first nine moofz012.

Interest expense - natas $0.7 million in the third quarter 2013, dowigistly from a net expense of $0.8 million in thérdhquarte
2012. Average debt levels were lower in the thitcirter 2013 than in the third quarter 2012. For fitet nine months of 2013, inten
expense-net was $2.4 million compared to $2.3 onilln the first nine months of 2012.

Income before income taxeandincome tax expenstor the third quarter and first nine months of 2@1@ 2012 were as follows:

Third Quarter Ended Nine Months Ended
Sept. 27, Sept. 28, Sept. 27, Sept. 28,
(Dollars in millions) 2013 2012 2013 2012
Income before income taxes $ 4 $ 12¢€ $ 191 $ 33«4
Income tax expense (benefit) (0.9 4.t 3.1 11.2
Effective tax rate (8.2% 35.71% 16.4% 33.71%

The effects of percentage depletion, the produaliaiuction, executive compensation, foreign soumceme and credits, federal crec
state and local taxes and other items were magborfafor the difference between the effective stadutory rates in the third quarter and
nine months of 2013 and 2012.

The tax benefit in the third quarter 2013 alsoudeld a net discrete benefit of $0.7 million thaufeed from the finalization of tl
2012 federal tax return at a lower liability thahat was previously recorded in the financial staets, the reversal of tax reserves due t
lapse of the associated statute of limitations bibreefits from amending a prior year tax return atiegtr matters.

In addition to the discrete events recorded inttirel quarter 2013, in the first quarter 2013, wearded a favorable discrete ever
$0.6 million that primarily represented the estiethtalue of the research and experimentation cf@d#012. This benefit was not includet
our tax rate for 2012 as accounting regulationsiirequs to record tax expense based upon the lawfdct as of the end of the year anc
U.S. Congress did not extend the research and iexgatation credit for 2012 until January 2013. Hfifective tax rate in the third quarter i
first nine months of 2013 also included a propaordite share of the estimated research and expestiwntredit for 2013.
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The effective tax rate prior to the impact of thiecdete events was lower in the third quarter 203 the effective tax rate in the f
half of 2013 due in part to changes in projectifmnghe full year.

A net favorable discrete event of $0.5 million wasorded in the third quarter 2012 as a resulhefiapse of the statute of limitatic
and book-to-provision differences on the finaliaatdf the 2011 federal tax return.

Net incomewas $5.0 million (or $0.24 per share, diluted) ie third quarter 2013 compared to $8.1 million $6r39 per shar
diluted) in the third quarter 2012. Net income #45.9 million (or $0.76 per share, diluted) in fhist nine months of 2013 and $22.2 mill
(or $1.07 per share, diluted) in the first nine thsrof 2012.

Segment Results

Results by segment are depicted in Note E to thes@mated Financial Statements. The All Other eoiun the segment reporti
includes our parent company expenses, other cdgpoharges and the operating results of Materioni&ss Inc., a wholly owned subsidi
that provides administrative and financial oversiggrvices to our other businesses on a cost-pisis.b

The operating loss within All Other in the thirdagter 2013 was $0.4 million lower than the thirdhgar 2012 and $1.9 million low
in the first nine months of 2013 than the firsteninonths of 2012. Corporate-incurred expenses lweser in the third quarter 2013 than the
third quarter 2012 but higher in the first nine riignof 2013 than the first nine months of 2012fiply as a result of the legal and other
administrative costs associated with the invedtigahto the potential inventory theft in 2012. Hewer, charges out to the business units
also lower in the third quarter 2013 than the tlgjuarter 2012 and higher in the first nine month2013 than the first nine months of 2012.

Advanced Material Technologies

Third Quarter Ended Nine Months Ended
Sept. 27, Sept. 28, Sept. 27, Sept. 28,

(Millions) 2013 2012 2013 2012
Sales $ 176 $ 190t $ 566.2 $ 654.-
Operating profit 41 9.2 5.2 22.C

Advanced Material Technologiesianufactures precious, n@necious and specialty metal products, includingovadeposition targe
frame lid assemblies, clad and precious metal pmeSp high temperature braze materials, Uime- wire, advanced chemicals, opt
performance coatings and microelectronic packadégse products are used in wireless, semiconduptootonic, hybrid and oth
microelectronic applications within the consumegctlonics and telecommunications infrastructureketar Other key markets for thi
products include medical, defense and scienceggrard industrial components. Advanced Materialhfetogies also has metal clear
operations and in-house refineries that allow ffier teclaim of precious metals from internally gated or customerscrap. This segment |
domestic facilities in New York, Connecticut, Wissin, New Mexico, Massachusetts and California iaternational facilities in Asia ai
Europe.

Sales from Advanced Material Technologies of $176ilBon in the third quarter 2013 were 7% loweathsales of $190.5 million
the third quarter 2012. Sales in the first nine therof 2013 were $566.2 million, a 13% decline freates of $654.2 million in the first ni
months of 2012. Lower pasisrough metal prices accounted for the majorityhef decline in sales in the first nine months of2&om the
first nine months of 2012. Sales in the third gemend first nine months of the year were alsocédfi by changes in the level of customer-
supplied metal.

Value-added sales of $67.8 million in the third jea 2013 were 8% lower than valadded sales of $73.3 million in the tt
quarter 2012. Value-added sales in the first nimatis of 2013 were $201.7 million, a 7% declinarfrthe valueadded sales of $21¢
million in the first nine months of 2012.

Consumer electronics is Advanced Material Techrielkidargest market, accounting for approximate§aof the segment’s value-
added sales in the third quarter 2013. Vadéded sales to this market in the third quarte320&re 9% lower in the third quarter 2013 1
the third quarter 2012 and 8% lower in the firstenmonths of 2013 than the first nine months of2204alueadded sales of phosphors
LED applications continued to grow in the third gea and first nine months of 2013 due to the imprbperformance that these mate
provide. However, valuadded sales of precious metals for LED applicatimange declined as manufacturers are redesigninggralucts ti
use lower quantities of precious metals in ordeethuce costs and the ultimate price to the endsossumers. Valuadded sales of optics -
gaming applications grew in the third quarter
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2013 over the third quarter 2012. Valadded sales for data storage applications alscowegrin the third quarter, but were still lowertie
first nine months of 2013 than in the first ninentits of 2012. Valua&dded sales of precious metals for various micotielric application
were softer in the third quarter 2013 than thedtijwarter 2012.

Value-added sales to the medical market grew approxign@#o in the third quarter 2013 over the third ¢ei@P012 and 13% in tl
first nine months of 2013 over the first nine mandf 2012. A portion of the growth in the third gea was due to increased shipments
key customer as result of a quality problem enceneat by one of our competitors serving that custoagewe were able to increi
production to meet this extra demand. Shipmentutocustomer are expected to decline from the héghls in the third quarter when -
customer and competitor resolve their issue. Vallded sales to the medical market have also gramingd2013 due to market share gi
and product development efforts. The medical maikéhis segment’'s second largest market, accogiritin approximately 22% of value-
added sales in the third quarter 2013.

Value-added sales from refining and shield kit cleanipgrations declined in the third quarter 2013 frdw third quarter 2012 a
in the first nine months of 2013 from the first @imonths of 2012. Valuadded sales from refining and shield kit cleanirg affected by
number of factors, including the quantity of produinitially sold to customers and the amount afyode material they generate, the type
materials processed, metal prices and the reteatidryield levels.

Defense and science valadded sales declined approximately 27% in the tpiraiter 2013 and 17% in the first nine monthsQff:
from the respective periods in 2012. The declins \aagely due to lower shipments of optics as alted government spending chacks
While a number of defense applications for optices fanded and remain active, there is a high le¥elncertainty in the market relative
future spending levels.

We discontinued sales of silver investment barhénthird quarter 2012, as this nsimategic product line generated extremely
margins that could not justify the associated lesfelvorking capital and overhead. This action acted for a reduction in sales of $
million in the first nine months of 2013, the majpiof which was in the first half of the year. Thaelueadded impact was only $0.3 million
the first nine months of 2013.

Value-added sales to the telecommunications infrastraatuarket, largely microelectronic packages, welatively unchanged
the third quarter from the third quarter 2012 afighly higher in the first nine months of 2013 théhe first nine months of 2012. 1
manufacture of these products was transferred famsachusetts to Singapore during the third qua@éd8 in order to be closer to
customer base.

Advanced Material Technologiegross margin was $24.9 million, or 14% of salesthia third quarter 2013 compared to $.
million, or 16% of sales, in the third quarter 20Edr the first nine months of 2013, gross margesv$69.0 million, or 12% of sal
compared to $85.9 million, or 13% of sales, infir& nine months of 2012.

Gross margin was 37% of value-added sales in ing duarter 2013 and 34% of valaelded sales in the first nine months of 2
Gross margin was 41% of value-added sales in ire qarter 2012 and 40% of value-added salesdriitst nine months of 2012.

The gross margin was lower in the third quarterafmd first nine months of 2013 largely as a restithe margin impact on t
lower valueadded sales in both periods. The change in pradictvas unfavorable in both the third quarter aimst fnine months of 20:
relative to the same periods in 2012. The unfaveratix resulted from competitive price pressurethwiew applications generally carry
lower margins than the applications they replaaavér manufacturing yields in the precious metal ufacturing operations, primarily t
refinery, also contributed to the decline in grosgrgin in the third quarter and first nine month2@13.

Gross margin was also lower in 2013 as a resulh@faforementioned closurelated costs of $0.8 million in the third quarser
$0.9 million in the first nine months which wereoeded in this segment’s cost of sales.

A physical inventory loss at the Albuquerque fagitf $2.3 million in the first quarter 2013 corited to the margin decline in-
first nine months of 2013.

Offsetting a portion of the negative margin impattthe above items was a decline in manufacturimgritead costs in the th
quarter 2013 and first nine months of 2013 fromabenparable periods of 2012.

Total SG&A, R&D and othenet expenses were $20.7 million (12% of saleshenthird quarter 2013 compared to $20.9 mi
(11% of sales) in the third quarter 2012. Theseepgps totaled $63.8 million (11% of sales) in trst iine months
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of 2013 and $63.9 million (10% of sales) in thatfinine months of 2012. Expenses were 31% of vatlteed sales in the first nine month
2013 and 30% of value-added sales in the first moaths of 2012.

The metal consignment fee was lower in the thirdrtgr and first nine months of 2013 compared tostree periods in 2012 due 1
combination of lower metal prices and reduced dtiaatof metal on hand. The majority of the banksfassociated with the renewal of
consignment agreements flowed through this segimethie third quarter 2013. SG&A expenses declifedughout the first nine months
2013 due in part to savings resulting from thelitycclosure activities and other cost control meas, including a reduction in costs at
Shanghai facility in response to the current bussinlevels. The benefits of these actions were piifspart by the aforementioned cost
implement the facility consolidations. Corporataides and incentive compensation expense were liovike third quarter 2013 than in
third quarter 2012, but higher in the first ninenttes of 2013 than the first nine months of 2012.

Advanced Material Technologies generated an operatiofit of $4.1 million in the third quarter 20B3d $9.2 million in the thi
quarter 2012. Operating profit was $5.2 million (b¥sales) in the first nine months of 2013 comgare$22.0 million (3% of sales) in 1
first nine months of 2012. Operating profit was 8%alue-added sales in the first nine months df3and 10% of valuadded sales in t
first nine months of 2012.

Performance Alloys

Third Quarter Ended Nine Months Ended
Sept. 27, Sept. 28, Sept. 27, Sept. 28,

(Millions) 2013 2012 2013 2012
Sales $ 69. $ 68.7 $ 218<« $ 216.
Operating profit 4.t 5.4 18.7 18.2

Performance Alloyamanufactures and sells three main product families:

Strip products, the largest of the product families, include thauge precision strip and thin diameter rod ané wihese copper a
nickel alloys provide a combination of high conduty, high reliability and formability for use asonnectors, contacts, switches, relays
shielding. Major markets for strip products inclusnsumer electronics, telecommunications infrastine, automotive electronics, applia
and medical;

Bulk products are copper and nickdlased alloys manufactured in plate, rod, bar, e other customized forms that, depen
upon the application, may provide superior strengtinrosion or wear resistance, thermal condugtieitlubricity. While the majority of bu
products contain beryllium, a growing portion ofllbproducts’ sales is from non-berylliuoentaining alloys as a result of proc
diversification efforts. Applications for bulk pradts include oil and gas drilling components, bagsj bushings, welding rods, plastic
tooling and undersea telecommunications housingpatent. Major markets for bulk products includeusttial components and commer
aerospace, energy and telecommunications infraatejand,

Beryllium hydroxide is produced at our milling operations in Utah froor bertrandite mine and purchased beryl ore. Muedxide
is used primarily as a raw material input for saipd bulk products and, to a lesser extent, byB#gllium and Composites segment. Sale
hydroxide are also made on a limited basis, typidalo or three times a year.

Strip and bulk products are manufactured at féeslitn Ohio and Pennsylvania and are distributéshiationally through a netwc
of company-owned service centers and outside bligbis and agents.

Sales by Performance Alloys totaled $69.5 milliarthe third quarter 2013, a 1% increase over s#l&§68.7 million in the thir
quarter 2012. Sales in the first nine months of®@&re $218.4 million compared to $216.4 milliorthie first nine months of 2012.

Total volumes of strip and bulk products shippedhe third quarter 2013 were 6% lower than the masa shipped in the thi
quarter 2012, while volumes shipped in the firstenmonths of 2013 were relatively unchanged froe fitst nine months of 2012. St
product volumes were down 3% in the third quart®t3, but were 4% higher in the first nine month2013 from the comparable period:
2012. Bulk product volumes were down 9% in thedhjuarter 2013 and 6% in the first nine months @13 However, shipments
ToughMet® products, our non-berylliuoentaining alloy manufactured in strip and bulknfier were strong in the third quarter 2013, groy
28% over the third quarter 2012. For the first mimenths of 2013, ToughMet® volumes were 5% highantthe first nine months of 2012.
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Sales of beryllium hydroxide totaleklL.9 million in the third quarter 2013 and $7.6lioil in the first nine months of 2013. Th
were no sales of beryllium hydroxide in the thitchger 2012 and $5.0 million of sales in the fivste months of 2012.

Copper pasghrough prices were lower in the third quarter 2€@ish the third quarter 2012 and on average waverlin the first nin
months of 2013 than the first nine months of 20i& U.S. dollar strengthened on average againgiufrencies in which we sell during
first nine months of 2013. The impact of the strmndollar on the translated value of foreign cucsedenominated sales coupled with
impact of the changes in copper prices reducedoFeance Alloys'sales by an estimated $1.8 million in the thirdrtpra2013 and $5
million in the first nine months of 2013 from thespective periods in 2012.

The sales order entry rate rebounded in the thirartgr 2013 after a softer second quarter 2013eiOedtry exceeded sales
approximately 9% in the third quarter 2013. Ordearefor the first nine months of 2013 was approaiaty equal to sales.

Value-added sales from Performance Alloys totaled $57liBomin the third quarter 2013 and $54.3 millionthe third quarter 201
Value-added sales in the first nine months of 26f18175.4 million were 3% higher than valadded sales of $170.3 million in the first r
months of 2012.

Value-added sales to the automotive electronics markehapily strip products, grew approximately 28%tire third quarter 20:
and 31% in the first nine months of 2013 over #&pective periods of 2012 as a result of improvadket conditions and the developmer
new applications. Increased demand for higher aalbdlen quality has led to stronger demand for owdpicts in Europe. Valuadded sales
the automotive electronics market were lower intthied quarter 2013 than in the second quarter 3tHr8ally due to the seasonality of
automotive market.

Consumer electronics valaelded sales improved approximately 12% in the thudrter 2013 over the third quarter 2012. Fo
first nine months of 2013, consumer electronicsi@aldded sales were 1% higher than in the first nineths of 2012. This growth is due t
combination of shipments for a new gaming systerpliegtion in 2013 and increased market share. uehanges in technologi
downstream inventory positions and other factots, shipments into the consumer electronics market given period are not necess:
driven by sales of the final product or by consuhemand in that period.

Value-added sales to the industrial componentscantmercial aerospace market, Performance Alltyrgiest market, were doy
6% in the third quarter 2013 from the third qua&@i2. Valueadded sales to this market were relatively unchairgéhe first nine months
2013 from the first nine months of 2012. We weréhia process of changing distribution methods &vtain industrial component applicatis
from using independent distributors to direct salesng 2013, which had a negative impact on olessas inventories were worked do
The commercial aerospace sector has shown modwrstigand offset a portion of the decline in indiadtcomponent sales.

Value-added sales into the energy market grew 14% irirtiné quarter 2013 over the third quarter 2012, wate down 8% in tt
first nine months of 2013 from the first nine manthf 2012. Valueadded sales to the oil and gas sector were strotitgifirst half of 201.
but then declined beginning in the third quartet2@ue to a reduction in the rig count. Market é¢tods have improved during 2013 and
value-added sales grew sequentially in the third andrebqoarters of 2013 over the respective prior guartA portion of this growth was
ToughMet® products.

Value-added sales to the appliance market, a smallerenfok Performance Alloys, were down approximatgh?o in the thin
quarter 2013 and 48% in the first nine months df2ffom the respective periods in 2012. While thd-ase demand for these products |
Europe, a growing portion of the component manufag is in Asia, where our products have beennfaaompetition from lowepricec
alloy systems.

Performance Alloys generated a gross margin of3fdllion, or 22% of sales, in the third quarterl30compared to $16.0 millic
or 23% of sales, in the third quarter 2012. Groasgim was $50.7 million, or 23% of sales, in thstfhine months of 2013 and $50.9 milli
or 24% of sales, in the first nine months of 20G20ss margin was 27% of valaglded sales in the third quarter 2013, down froft 24
value-added sales in the third quarter 2012. Gmuag)in was 29% of value-added sales in the fins¢ mhonths of 2013 versus 30% of value-
added sales in the comparable period of 2012.

Gross margin benefitted from the increased valdded sales of strip and bulk products and hydeokidthe third quarter and fi
nine months of 2013. Selling prices were highethia first nine months of 2013 than in the firstenimonths of 2012, while shop flc
improvements were made during the first half of 20lhese margin benefits were partially offsethiy impact of currency translation rate
the third quarter and first nine months of 2013rd¢ilas were also unfavorably impacted
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by lower manufacturing volumes asventories were pulled down in the second qua2@t3 and the Elmore facility had a one w
maintenance shutdown during the third quarter 2013.

Total SG&A, R&D and othenet expenses were $11.0 million (16% of saleshenthird quarter 2013 compared to $10.6 mi
(15% of sales) in the third quarter 2012. Theseeasgps totaled $32.0 million (15% of sales) in fr& hine months of 2013 and $32.6 mill
(15% of sales) in the first nine months of 2012e3d expenses were 18% of vahdeled sales in the first nine months of 2013 artd bf
value-added sales in the first nine months of 2012.

Expenses were slightly higher in the third qua®t3 due to an increase in R&D costs (as a re$uiigher activity levels), lows
foreign currency exchange gains (as a result ofemmnts in the exchange rates and matured hedgecsitand a loss on the dispose
obsolete equipment. The impact of these items veaafly offset by lower corporate charges and iminee compensation expense and
currency rate impact on the translation of foreigrrency expenses in the third quarter 2013.

Expenses were lower in the first nine months of20tan in the first nine months of 2012 due to bigforeign currency exchan
gains, lower incentive compensation expense andulrency rate impact on the translation of foreignmency expenses during the first t
months of 2013. These benefits were partially offisean increase in corporate charges, higher R&Rscand other factors.

Performance Alloys generated an operating profi$4® million in the third quarter 2013 compared$®4 million in the thir
quarter 2012. Operating profit of $18.7 millionthre first nine months of 2013 was 2% higher thandherating profit of $18.3 million in t
first nine months of 2012. Operating profit was 8¥sales in the first nine months of 2013 and the & sales in the first nine months
2012. Operating profit was also 11% of value-adsids in both the first nine months of 2013 and2201

Beryllium and Composites

Third Quarter Ended Nine Months Ended
Sept. 27, Sept. 28, Sept. 27, Sept. 28,

(Millions) 2013 2012 2013 2012
Sales $ 137 $ 142 $ 422 % 43.1
Operating loss 3.3 (0.5 (3.9 (3.9

Beryllium and Compositesnanufactures berylliunbased metals and metal matrix composites in rodetstfoil and a variety
customized forms. These materials are used inegifns that require high stiffness and/or low dgrend they tend to be premiupricec
due to their uniqgue combination of properties. T8ggment also manufactures beryllia ceramic predddte acquisition of Aerospace Mt
Composites Limited (AMC) in the first quarter 20fatvides a complementary family of non-beryllilmased alloys and composites. Deft
and science is the largest market for Beryllium &uwnposites, while other markets served includeistrthl components and commer
aerospace, medical, energy and telecommunicatignastructure. Products are also sold for acoustiptical scanning and performal
automotive applications. Manufacturing facilities Beryllium and Composites are located in Ohidjf@ania, Arizona and England.

Sales from Beryllium and Composites were $13.7iomlin the third quarter 2013, a 5% decline froresaf $14.4 million in th
third quarter 2012. Sales of $42.2 million in thstfnine months of 2013 were 2% lower than safe®8.1million in the first nine months
2012. Beryllium and Composites does not directlgsptarough changes in the costs of its materidty so under our definition, sales
value-added sales for this segment are the same.

Sales to the defense and science market declineith ®€ third quarter 2013 from the third quart®d2 and were 4% lower in t
first nine months of 2013 than the first nine mentti 2012. While the government budgetary spendiulgictions and the sequestration
impacted the order entry rate, sales in the thirarigr were also impacted by the timing and prangssf the release of orders from our di
customers. Sales were also adversely affected bgr@er that required rework and, therefore, wilt sbip until the fourth quarter 20:
Science applications, which do not necessarily llhgesame government budgetary constraints aditnaali defense applications, are a m
growth platform for Beryllium and Composites.

Industrial components and commercial aerospaces,saleich had improved in the first half of 2013 ptbke first half of 201:
softened 28% in the third quarter 2013 from thedtlgjuarter 2012. The lower sales were primarily ttueveaker demand for industrialray
applications. Demand for AIBeMet®, a metal matroagposite, for applications in semiconductor
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manufacturing and inspection equipment has bedrf@ofpproximately two years. However, order endéyels in the third quarter 2013
shipments in future periods for these applicatiomsroved.

Sales to the medical market, primarily forag window applications, improved in the third qear2013 compared to each of the
two quarters of 2013, but were still slightly lowtean sales in the third quarter 2012. Sales tdaaleeommunications infrastructure marke
smaller market for Beryllium and Composites, gréighdly in the third quarter and the first nine ntlos of 2013 over the comparable per
of 2012. The majority of telecommunications infrasture sales are beryllia ceramic products.

The order entry level in the third quarter 2013 wpproximately 13% higher than sales in the peaiod was higher than the or
entry in the previous three quarters.

The gross margin on Beryllium and Composites’ salas$0.7 million (5% of sales) in the third quarter 30dnd $3.4 million (23
of sales) in the third quarter 2012. Gross margithe first nine months of 2013 was $7.9 millio®%d of sales) compared to $7.3 mill
(17% of sales) in the first nine months of 2012.

The lower sales volume contributed to the margiclide in the third quarter 2013. The change in paddnix was also unfavorab
as the product mix in the third quarter 2012 wasrgt. The use of higher priced purchased matenidllewer yields on vacuum cast prodi
also contributed to the lower margins. Manufactyriverhead costs flowing against cost of sales Wigteer due to differences in product
levels and absorption rates. The brief shutdowthatElmore facility also impacted Beryllium and Qumusites’gross margin in the thi
quarter 2013.

The gross margin was $0.6 million higher in thstfitine months of 2013 than the first nine month20d12 as the improved marg
from the first half of the year more than offset tbwer margins in the third quarter 2013. Mardiesefitted in the first half of the 2013 fr.
improved scrap utilization, higher production voksrand a favorable change in product mix.

The output from the new beryllium plant in the thiqguarter 2013 was the highest total to date. Tdudlity converts berylliur
hydroxide into beryllium metal pebbles, which sem® the raw material input to the manufacture ahpgleted parts. The improv
performance provided a benefit to gross marginghénthird quarter and first nine months of 2013 aspared to the same periods of 2!
While output has improved, material was purchaseah third parties during the first nine months mder to help meet product demand du
2013.

SG&A, R&D and othemet expenses for Beryllium and Composites totale@ #illion in the third quarter 2013 compared &9
million in the third quarter 2012. These expensesav$11.7 million in the first nine months of 20d@mpared to $11.1 million in the first n
months of 2012. The higher expense in the thirdtquaand a portion of the higher expense in thst fiine months of 2013 was due
increased activity on various R&D projects. Corpereharges and amortization expense also contdldotthe increase in expenses in the
nine months of the year.

Beryllium and Composites generated operating los§&38.3 million in the third quarter 2013 and $@alion in the third quarte

2012. For the first nine months of 2013, the opegatloss from Beryllium and Composites was $3.8lianl unchanged from the first ni
months of 2012.

Technical Materials

Third Quarter Ended Nine Months Ended
Sept. 27, Sept. 28, Sept. 27, Sept. 28,

(Millions) 2013 2012 2013 2012
Sales $ 15¢ $ 17.C $ 53¢ $ 55.t
Operating profit 1.4 1.1 5.2 5.0

Technical Materials’ capabilities include clad inlay and overlay metaisecious and base metal electroplated systemstratebear
welded systems, contour profiled systems and saldated metal systems. These specialty strip mevalupts provide a variety of therr
electrical or mechanical properties from a surfaE or particular section of the material. Ouddiag and plating capabilities allow fo
precious metal or other base metal to be applieiminuous strip form only where it is needed uedg the material cost to the custome
well as providing design flexibility and performandvajor applications for these products includersztors, contacts, power lead frames
semiconductors, while the largest markets are aotiom
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electronics and consumer electronics. The enerdynadical markets are smaller but offer furthemghoopportunities. Technical Materials’
products are manufactured at our Rhode Islandtfacil

Sales from Technical Materials were $15.9 millionthie third quarter 2013, a 6% decrease from sHI€d7.0 million in the thir
quarter 2012. Sales in the first nine months of26f1$53.9 million were 3% lower than sales of $6illion in the first nine months of 207

Sales of inlay products increased in the third tprd?013, while sales of the other major produstdi were lower in the third quai
2013 than the third quarter 2012.

Order entry softened in the third quarter 2013 ftbmlevels in the first two quarters of 2013 arabvapproximately equal to sale
the period.

Value-added sales of $9.3 million in the third qer2013 were approximately 10% lower than vaddeed sales in the third qua
2012, while value-added sales of $32.6 millionhe first nine months of 2013 were approximately I6%er than the valuedded sales in tl
first nine months of 2012.

Value-added sales to the automotive electronics markat gn the third quarter and first nine months ol 2@ver the comparal
periods in 2012. The improvement was in both theektic and international markets. Valadded sales to the energy market also impt
in the third quarter and first nine months of 2Gd@n the respective periods in 2012 due to fuel artl other new product developm
programs. The growth in these markets was more dfiset by weaker valuadded sales to the consumer electronics marketeirthirc
quarter and first nine months of 2013 largely duehianges in technologies and the phase-out aiXisting disk drive application.

The gross margin on sales from Technical Materals $3.5 million, or 22% of sales, in the third 4qea2013 and $3.3 million,
19% of sales, in the third quarter 2012. Gross masgs $11.8 million in the first nine months oflA) unchanged from the first nine mor
of 2012. Gross margin was 22% of sales in the firse months of 2013 compared to 21% of sales énfitist nine month of 2012. Gr¢
margin was 38% of value-added sales in the thi@tgn 2013, an improvement of the gross margin28b f valueadded sales in the th
quarter 2012. For the first nine months of 2018sgrmargin was 36% of value-added sales compar@89toof valueadded sales in the fi
nine months of 2012.

The margin growth in the third quarter 2013 was ttueanproved yields and efficiencies in inlay protiiresulting from lean sigr
efforts, price increases and a favorable changedduct mix, partially offset by the impact of tlesver volumes.

In the first nine months of 2013, the margin besdfiom the improved yield and efficiencies, prinereases and favorable chang
product mix were offset by the lower volumes arghler manufacturing overhead expenses.

SG&A, R&D and othemet expenses totaled $2.1 million in the third teraP013, unchanged from the third quarter 2012st
expenses totaled $6.5 million in the first nine thenof 2013 compared to $6.8 million in the firsienmonths of 2012 and were 12% of s
in both periods. Expenses were 20% of valdded sales in the first nine months of 2013 ari®2The lower expense dollars in the first |
months of 2013 resulted from a reduction in manpoavel other administrative costs as well as a roluin various selling expenses in
first quarter 2013.

Technical Materials generated an operating prdfi$h4 million in the third quarter 2013 compared$1.1 million in the thir
quarter 2012. Operating profit of $5.2 million retfirst nine months of 2013 was a 5% improvemeet ¢the operating profit of $5.0 milli
in the first nine months of 2012. Operating prefias 10% of sales in the first nine months of 20dMgared to 9% of sales in the first r
months of 2012 and 16% of value-added sales ifirgtenine months of 2013 compared to 15% in tihgt fiine months of 2012.
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Value-Added Sales - Reconciliation of Non-GAAP Mease

A reconciliation of sales to value-added salespa®AAP measure, for each reportable segment anchéCompany in total for tl
third quarter and first nine months of 2013 and2¥las follows:

Third Quarter Ended Nine Months Ended
Sept. 27, Sept. 28, Sept. 27, Sept. 28,
(Millions) 2013 2012 2013 2012
Sales
Advanced Material Technologies $ 176.: $ 190t $ 566.2 $ 654.
Performance Alloys 69.5 68.7 218.¢ 216.¢
Beryllium and Composites 13.7 14.4 42.2 43.1
Technical Materials 15.¢ 17.C 53.¢ 55.E
All Other — — — 0.1
Total $ 2754 $ 290 $ 8807 $ 969.
Less: Pass-through Metal Cost
Advanced Material Technologies $ 108t $ 1172 $ 364.F $ 437¢
Performance Alloys 12.2 14.4 43.C 46.1
Beryllium and Composites — — — —
Technical Materials 6.€ 6.7 21.: 21.1
All Other — — — —
Total $ 1272 $ 1382 $ 428¢8 $ 5051
Value-added Sales
Advanced Material Technologies $ 67 $ 73 $ 2017 $ 216.
Performance Alloys 57.2 54.: 175.¢ 170.:
Beryllium and Composites 13.7 14.4 42.2 43.1
Technical Materials 9.3 10.: 32.€ 34.4
All Other — — — 0.1
Total $ 1481 $ 152 $ 451¢ $ 464

The cost of gold, silver, platinum, palladium ar@pper can be quite volatile. Our pricing policytésdirectly pass the cost of th
metals on to the customer in order to mitigateithgact of metal price volatility on our results fincoperations. Trends and comparisor
sales are affected by movements in the market piaéehese metals, but changes in sales due td prite movements may not direc
impact our profitability.

Internally, management reviews sales on a valueaddsis. Value-added sales is a @¥AP measure that deducts the value o
pass-through metals sold from sales. Vadded sales allows management to assess the impddferences in sales between perii
segments or markets and analyze the resulting msagid profitability without the distortion of theovements in the pasgsrough met:
values. The dollar amount of gross margin and dpgrarofit is not affected by the valwalded sales calculation. We sell other metals
materials that are not considered direct pass-tfit@and their costs are not deducted from sales wdieulating value-added sales.

Our sales are also affected by changes in the usastomersupplied metal. When we manufacture a precious Ipetaluct, th:
customer may purchase metal from us or may eleptdwide its own metal, in which case we processmietal on a toll basis and the m
value does not flow through sales or cost of sdlesither case, we generally earn our margin bagemh our fabrication efforts. T
relationship of that margin to sales can changed@pg upon whether the product was made from atalhor the customes! The use ¢
value-added sales removes the potential distoitidine comparison of sales caused by changes ilevieéof customer-supplied metal.

By presenting information on sales and vahdgled sales, it is our intention to allow userswf financial statements to review
sales with and without the impact of the pass-tghometals.
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LEGAL

Standards for exposure to beryllium are under vewig the United States Occupational Safety and tHe&diministration (OSHA) ar
by other governmental and private standsetting organizations. One result of these reviewilikely be more stringent worker safe
standards. Some organizations, such as the Cadif@decupational Health and Safety Administratiord ahe American Conference
Governmental Industrial Hygienists, have adopteshdirds that are more stringent than the currandards of OSHA. The developm
proposal or adoption of more stringent standardg aff@ct the buying decisions by the users of bienyl-containing products. If the standa
are made more stringent and/or our customers a@r atbwnstream users decide to reduce their useemlliom-containing products, o
results of operations, liquidity and financial cdiwh could be materially adversely affected. Thgact of this potential adverse effect wc
depend on the nature and extent of the changdsetstandards, the cost and ability to meet the standards, the extent of any reductio
customer use and other factors. The magnitudei®ptitential adverse effect cannot be estimated.

There was one chronic beryllium (CBD) case outstep@gainst us as of the end of the third quar@32 This case was filed
2012. A loss reserve of $0.1 million was recordertiiis case as of the end of the third quarteB2Qfhchanged from ye&nd 2012. No oth
CBD cases have been filed or settled during thet fhiree quarters of 2013. However, in the fountlarter 2013, we were served wit
complaint relating to one new CBD case.

FINANCIAL POSITION

Net cash provided from operationsas $38.5 million in the first nine months of 2013, ast income, the effects of depreciat
amortization and stock compensation expense aret @#ms offset the decrease in accounts payalleecrued items (which was parti
due to the payment of the 2012 incentive compemsati employees during the first quarter 2013).hiJa®mvided from operations in the tt
quarter 2013 was a strong $20.4 million.

Cashwas $20.2 million as of the end of the third qua2@13 compared to $16.1 million as of year-end201

Accounts receivablef $122.0 million as of the end of the third quar2®13 were $4.5 million, or 4%, lower than theeieable
balance of $126.5 million as of yeand 2012. The decline in the receivable balancelavgsly due to the lower sales in the third quatEl:
than in the fourth quarter 2012. This reduction wtset in part by a slow down in the average atiten period as the days sales outstar
(DSO) slowed from 37 days as of yeard 2012 to approximately 40 days as of the entleothird quarter 2013. This slower collection pd
was within our normal operating range.

We continue to aggressively monitor and manageceoeniit exposures and the collectability of our realles. We will adjust ol
credit terms, including requiring cash in advameken warranted. The bad debt expense in the finstmonths of 2013 was immaterial.

Inventories totaled $205.3 million as of the end of the thindager 2013, a decrease of $0.8 million since yea-2012. Th
inventory turnover ratio, a measure of how effeg{ninventory is utilized, slowed down from the yemd 2012 level and the level from
first two quarters of 2013, but was roughly in limgh the ratio from the third quarter 2012.

Inventory declined due to lower ounces of precimetal in the refine operation stream at the Bufffdew York facility. Thit
decrease was partially offset by the purchase wf meaterials to build inventories Elmore facility order to level load the producti
scheduling and to meet demand and in anticipatfotalong equipment down in the fourth quarter. Weogpurchased beryllium feedstt
during the second quarter 2013 to be used to augpmeduction from the new beryllium plant in ordermeet the sales demand. Beryll
metal products typically have a long processindecyc

We use the last-in, firstut (LIFO) method for valuing a large portion ofra@lomestic inventories. By so doing, the most reces
of various raw materials, including gold, copped anickel, is charged to cost of sales in the curpamiod. The older, and often lower, ct
are used to value the inventory on hand. Therefaneent changes in the cost of raw materials stitjethe LIFO valuation method have ¢
a minimal i mpact on changes in the inventory dagyalue.

Gold prices and the prices of other metals wereetaw the third quarter 2013 than the yead 2012 levels. These lower prices v

charged to cost of sales, matching the phssmigh prices charged to the customers, and dichage a significant impact on the invent
carrying value.
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Capital expendituregor the first nine months of 2013 and 2012 are samnwed as follows:

Nine Months Ended

Sept. 27, Sept. 28,
(Millions) 2013 2012
Capital expenditures $ 19.¢ $ 2B.E
Mine development 4.4 5.C
Subtotal 24.2 30.5
Reimbursement for spending under government cantrac — 1.C
Net spending $ 24z $ 29.2

The multiyear $104.9 million Title 11l contract with the U.Bepartment of Defense for the design and devetoprof a new facility fc
the production of primary beryllium was largely qoieted during 2012 and, therefore, there was ndtiaddl spending under the contrac
any reimbursements received during the first nimatims of 2013. We spent an additional $1.6 milkbanside of the Title Il contract duril
the first nine months of 2013 on the beryllium fagito improve the performance of specific pieceks equipment and the rela
infrastructure.

Spending on major projects in the first nine morth2013 included the large optics initiative ag Westford, Massachusetts facil
new vertical casting equipment to increase the agp&o manufacture ToughMet®roducts at our Lorain, Ohio facility, upgradestia
rolling equipment at the Reading, Pennsylvania afans to allow for improved quality of thin gauggip product, upgrades to the strip
bulk product processing equipment at the EImordifia@and an upgrade and expansion of the welding tapabilities at the Lincoln, Rhc
Island operations. Capital spending in the firsieninonths of 2013 also included various informateshnology projects.

Mine development costs totaled $4.4 million in finst nine months of 2013, the majority of whichreeéncurred in the first half
the year, and were part of a $14.5 million pit itaklthat was started in 2012. Extraction of orenftbis pit began late in the second quart
this year.

Intangible assetof $25.9 million at the end of the third quarterl20wvere $3.0 million lower than the balance of $2&iillion a
yearend 2012. The decrease was due to current periadtiaation net of deferred financing costs incuriedsupport of the new cre
facilities.

Other liabilities and accrued itemeere $50.8 million at the end of the third qua6d3, a decrease of $5.0 million from yemc
2012. The payment of the 2012 annual incentive @nsation to employees in the first quarter 2013afighe expense for the first ni
months of 2013 was the main cause of the declimerugls for utilities, professional services, wagkeeompensation and other items
declined due to business levels, seasonal factarther causes.

Unearned revenue which is a liability representing products invoicedcustomers but not yet shipped, was $0.5 miléibthe en
of the third quarter 2013 compared to $1.5 millamof December 31, 2012. Revenue and the assoategin will be recognized for the
transactions when the goods ship, title passeakither revenue recognition criteria are metoloing in advance of the shipment, whic
only done in certain circumstances, allows us teecbcash sooner than we would otherwise.

Other long-term liabilitiestotaled $16.5 million at the end of the third qear2013 compared to $16.2 million at yesd 2012, ¢
increases in long-term compensation plan accrualther items were partially offset by the amatiian of capital lease balances.

Unearned incomeof $57.7 million at the end of the third quartel30vas $3.5 million lower than the balance of $&hiltion as o
yearend 2012. This balance represents the unamortéetbursements from the government for equipmenthasges for the new beryllit
facility made under the Title Il program. The $3lion reduction to unearned income in the fiigie months of 2013 was recorded agi
cost of sales on the Consolidated Statement ofnhecand offset the depreciation expense recordedeonnderlying equipment. Depreciat
and amortization expense on the Consolidated Seateai Cash Flows is depicted net of the corresponeeduction in unearned income.
Note | to the Consolidated Financial Stateme
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The retirement and post-employment beneliiability was $122.0 million at the end of the thiguarter 2013 compared to $1-
million as of December 31, 2012. This balance regmés the liability under our domestic defined iiépension plan, the retiree medical
and other retirement plans and post-employmengjatiins.

The liability for the domestic defined benefit piems plan declined $4.7 million in the first nine nths of 2013 as a result
contributions to the plan totaling $9.2 million aad adjustment to other comprehensive income @f 8#llion offset in part by an expense
$9.9 million for the first nine months of the year.

The retirement and posmployment benefit liability was also affected hifedences between the payments made under othes
the quarterly expense for these plans and oth&oriac

Debttotaled $88.4 million as of the end of the thircager 2013 compared to $94.3 million as of yead-2012. Debt increased $1
million in the first quarter 2013 in order to futite payment of the 2012 incentive compensatiomiplayees in the first quarter 2013, of
working capital items, capital expenditures and dhedend to shareholders. Debt then declined $2&llon in total during the second &
third quarters of 2013 as a result of the net ineganerated in those quarters and changes in vgockipital items.

Outstanding short-term debt was $36.0 million athefend of the third quarter 2013, while long-tetebt totaled $52.4 million.
We were in compliance with all of our debt covesaas of the end of the third quarter 2013.

Shareholders’ equitywas $432.4 million as of the end of the third gqem®013 compared to $415.0 million as of yead 2012. Th
primary cause for the increase in equity in thetfiine months of 2013 was comprehensive incon#l6f4 million. This increase to eqt
was partially offset by declared dividends of $blion in the first nine months of 2013. Equity svalso affected by stock compensa
expense, the exercise of stock options and otlotoria

Prior Year Financial Position

Net cash used in operating activities was $7.4ianilin the first nine months of 2012 as net incaand the effects of depreciation w
more than offset by the net change in working ehptems, including increases in accounts receevabid inventory and a decreas
accounts payable and other liabilities and accitesds. In the third quarter 2012, cash providednfroperations totaled $1.7 million as
majority of the net growth in working capital ocoed during the first half of 2012.

Accounts receivable totaled $138.9 million at the ef the third quarter 2012, an increase of $2illion, or 18%, from the balan
of $117.8 million at year-end 2011 as the DSO stbtee43 days as of the end of the third quarte2201

Inventories increased $24.2 million, or 13%, in fingt nine months of 2012, largely due to the timbf production scheduling anc
support future sales growth within Performance ydloinventories of beryllium hydroxide also incredsdue to higher mining rates at
Utah operation. The acquisition of AMC had a mimopact on the inventory growth in the first nine mtto of 2012.

Other liabilities and accrued items declined $0.flion in the first nine months of 2012 as the panhof the 2011 incenti
compensation expense to employees during thegiiatter 2012 was largely offset by the movementsthier items. The retirement and post-
employment benefit balance was $6.7 million lowethe end of the third quarter 2012 than yead 2011 mainly due to the contributior
the domestic defined pension benefit plan of $fillion offset in part by the expense recordedtf@ various plans and other factors.

Capital expenditures, net of reimbursements froengttvernment for purchases made for the berylliaaiify in accordance with tl
Title 1l contract, totaled $29.3 million. Spendingithin Advanced Material Technologies totaled $9alllion while spending withi
Performance Alloys was $10.9 million.

We acquired the outstanding shares of AMC for $8ilBon, net of cash received, during the first gea2012.
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Outstanding debt increased from $81.4 million atryend 2011 to $122.5 million at the end of the tlyjedirter 2012. The increase
debt was used to fund the growth in working capiapital expenditures, quarterly dividend andAMC acquisition.

Cash balances totaled $10.9 million at the enti@third quarter 2012, a decrease of $1.4 millionesyear-end 2011.
Off-balance Sheet Arrangements and Contractual Obgiations

We maintain the majority of our precious metals argbrtion of our copper that we use in productiora consignment basis in or
to reduce our exposure to metal price movementstamdduce our working capital investment. The bedaoutstanding under these off-
balance sheet consignment arrangements totaled3g8Mion as of the end of the third quarter 2@Bnpared to $286.9 million as of year-
end 2012. The decline in the outstanding balancepsianarily due to lower metal prices.

During the third quarter 2013, we renewed our metaisignment agreements. The maturity dates waenéad from one to thr
years and the total capacity was increased. Prigimttgr the agreements improved, while the othert&ays and conditions remained larg
unchanged from the previous agreements.

We were in compliance with the covenants containexlr consignment agreements as of Septembei023, 2

We negotiated a new revolving credit facility iretbecond quarter 2013 that replaced the prioritfatilat was scheduled to maturt
2016. The new facility is secured and providesai$375.0 million of borrowing capacity, an increa$e$50.0 million over the prior facilit
Borrowing rates are based on a spread over LIBAR, tve spreads being slightly lower under the ri@gility than they were under the
facility. The financial covenants remained unchahg@ée new facility matures in 2018.

For additional information on our contractual obligns, please see page 38 of our Annual RepoFRoom 10K for the year ende
December 31, 2012.

Liquidity

We believe funds from operations plus the availdiderowing capacity and the current cash balaneeaalequate to supp
operating requirements, capital expenditures, ptefe pension plan contributions, the payment ofrtguly dividends, share repurcha:
environmental remediation projects and strategipgisitions.

Cash provided from operations was $38.5 millionthia first nine months of 2013. After consuming $t#lion of cash in the fir
quarter 2013, we generated $43.3 million of casthefollowing two quarters due to net income ahdnges in working capital levels.
typically consume cash in the first quarter of eegiyear and then generate cash over the balarthe géar.

We paid quarterly dividends to our shareholderalitmg $4.9 million in the first nine months of 201Qur Board of Directors hi
initiated a quarterly dividend payout of $0.075 pkare in the second quarter 2012. The Board tieneased the payout to $0.08 per s
beginning in the second quarter 2013. We intengap a quarterly dividend on an ongoing basis, sublie a continuing strong capi
structure and a determination by our Board of Doesthat the dividend remains in the best inteoéite shareholders.

Our domestic defined benefit pension plan was dodded as of the end of the third quarter 2013. t@mutions to the plan a
determined by a variety of factors, including tHanpfunded ratio, plan investment performance, alist rates, actuarial assumptions,
amendments, our policies and objectives, the avifitlaof cash and other factors. We anticipate mglcontributions of approximately $1.
million to the plan during 2013. Contributions imetfirst nine months of 2013 totaled $9.2 milli@@ontributions made during the fou
quarter 2013 will be funded with cash from openagior borrowings under existing lines of credit.

We made lump sum payments of approximately $14/8omito terminated deferred vested participantghia domestic define
benefit pension plan in the second quarter 2013ledithis program, eligible participants were oftethe opportunity to elect to receiv
lump sum payment in the second quarter 2013 indfean annuity upon retirement. The payments were
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made from the pension plan assets and additionalp@oy contributions were not required to fund theagments. The lump sum progr
was part of our long-term objective of reducing tis&s associated with this plan.

The debt-to-debt-plus-equity ratio, a measure tdrixge sheet leverage, improved from 19% as of gadr2012 to 17% as of the ¢
of the third quarter 2013 as a result of the dedindebt and an increase in equity.

The available and unused borrowing capacity unideretxisting lines of credit, which is subject tmiliations set forth in the de
covenants, was $148.8 million as of the end othivel quarter 2013.

By renegotiating and securing a new revolving dréatiility in the second quarter 2013, we were dblextend the maturity date
two years, which provides us with additional stiyp#nd financial flexibility.

The renewal of our metal consignment lines in thiedtquarter 2013 also provides financing secuaityl flexibility. The availabl
and unused capacity under the off-balance shesigmmment lines totaled $137.6 million as of the efthe third quarter 2013.

We also had $20.2 million of cash as of the enthefthird quarter 2013.
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

For additional information regarding critical acoting policies, please refer to pages 41 to 43usfAnnual Report on Form 1K-for
the year ended December 31, 2012. There have beenaterial changes in our critical accounting pgelicsince the inclusion of tl
discussion in our Annual Report on Form 10-K.

OUTLOOK

Market conditions remained mixed in the third qear013 and into the early portion of the fourthager 2013. The reduc
government defense budgets were negatively affpaiim sales into the defense and science markde e government shutdown ¢
related issues led to a high level of uncertaintg number of other markets.

The automotive electronics market has been stioug far in 2013, in part due to the demand forhaghergquality materials. Withi
the medical market, sales for blood glucose tefgt applications were particularly strong in thédhquarter 2013, but sales forray window
applications were soft. Portions of the consumectebnics market have strengthened, including ack@uehemicals for LED applications
other materials for gaming systems, but portionthisf market also remained soft.

We anticipate that business levels will improvethe fourth quarter 2013 over the third quarter 2643ed upon the order er
pattern, market analyses and other information.hWitBeryllium and Composites, shipment levels, udghg materials for scien
applications, should increase over the third qué?@4.3 as various orders are released by customérdelieve that shipment levels shc
increase during the fourth quarter 2013 in othetipas of the business as well.

We face competitive pressures due to precious rpetas. While prices have been lower in the fiisie months of 2013 than in
first nine months of 2012, an increasing portioroof customer base is aggressively investigatitegratives in order to minimize their me
costs.

The output from the new beryllium plant continuedimprove in the third quarter 2013 and the fagilitas demonstrated 1
capability to meet our planned material needs éncibming period.

Despite the higher shipments in the fourth quather,cost structures of portions of our businessirie be reviewed and adjusted to
align with the current business levels. We antiggaking the appropriate actions that will resultecording a charge of up to $0.15 per sl
in the fourth quarter 2013. These actions showdltén cost savings beginning in the first quaget4.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Portions of the narrative set forth in this docuibrtbat are not statements of historical or curfanots are forwardeoking statements,
particular, the outlook provided above. Our actudglire performance may materially differ from tl@intemplated by the forwatdeking
statements as a result of a variety of factorssé&tactors include, in addition to those mentioaksdwhere herein:

« Actual sales, operating rates and margins for 20132014

< Uncertainties relating to the fourth quarter 20h¥gical inventory and possible theft at our Albuaque facility, including (i) the cos
and outcome of our investigations and (ii) the tighand amount, if any, of any insurance proceeaisviie might receive;

e The global econom

e The impact of the Federal government shutdownssandestration

< The condition of the markets which we serve, whetlefined geographically or by segment, with thgamaarket segments beil
consumer electronics, industrial components andnoercial aerospace, defense and science, autonalée&onics, medical, ener
and telecommunications infrastructure;

« Changes in product mix and the financial conditéeustomer:

* Our success in developing and introducing nevdpets and new product ranp-rates

* Our success in passing through the costs of raveral to customers or otherwise mitigating flutitug prices for those materie
including the impact of fluctuating prices on intery values;

« Our success in integrating acquired busine

« Our success in moving the microelectronics paclkagperations to Singapo

e Our success in completing the announced facilitysotidations and the product line rationalizatiarsl achieving the expec
benefits;

< Our success in implementing our strategic pkamd the timely and successful completion and sgaf any capital projects, includi
the primary beryllium facility in EImore, Ohio;

< The availability of adequate lines of credit and #ssociated interest ra

e The impact of the results of acquisitions on odilitgtio achieve fully the strategic and financabjectives related to these acquisitit

« Other financial factors, including the cost and i@mlity of raw materials (both base and preciaustals), physical invento
valuations, metal financing fees, tax rates, exgbarates, pension costs and required cash condrisuand other employee ben
costs, energy costs, regulatory compliance cdstscost and availability of insurance, and the ichjmd the Company stock price ¢
the cost of incentive compensation plans;

e The uncertainties related to the impact of warptést activities and acts of Gc

* Changes in government regulatory requirements fam@nactment of new legislation that impacts oligabons and operatior

» The conclusion of pending litigation matters in@ciance with our expectation that there will benmaterial adverse effec

« The timing and ability to achieve further efficiée® and synergies resulting from our name chandeerduct line alignment under
Materion name and Materion brand; and

« The risk factors set forth in Part 1, Iltem 1Ao0ir Annual Report on Form 10for the year ended December 31, 2I
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Item 4. Controls and Procedures

We carried out an evaluation under the superviaimhwith the participation of our management, idilg the chief executive officer
and chief financial officer, of the effectivenedstme design and operation of our disclosure cdsimad procedures as of September 27, 2013
pursuant to Rule 13a-15(b) and 15d-15(b) undeBtwurities Act of 1934, as amended. Based uporettatiation, our management,
including our chief executive officer and chiefdincial officer, concluded that our disclosure colstivere not effective as of September 27,
2013 due to the material weakness described below.

During the fourth quarter 2013, a deficiency wamnitified in our internal control over financial m@ting. Specifically, our management
review controls failed to detect errors in the pbgkinventory count reconciliation process at ofieur facilities during the second and third
quarters of 2013. As a result of this material wess, we concluded that we did not maintain effeatontrol over financial reporting as of
September 27, 2013.

During 2014, certain actions are being implemetdegmediate this material weakness, including:rouimg processes, implementing
additional controls and increased precision arauadagement’s review controls, supplementing teehigiempetence of our accounting staff
with additional internal and, as needed, contrespurces, and creating a new management leveigrosftinventory Controller who will
report directly to the Corporate Vice Presidenfinfance and be responsible for maintaining compmiadg- controls specifically over precio
metal inventory.

There has been no change in our internal contret fimancial reporting that occurred during the eraended September 27, 2013 that
has materially affected, or is reasonably likelyrtaterially affect, our internal control over fir@al reporting.
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PART Il OTHER INFORMATION

ltem 6. Exhibits

10.1 Amendment No. 4 to Third Amended and Restated BuscMetals Agreement, dated September 13, 2013ng
Materion Corporation and certain of its subsidimrend The Bank of Nova Scotia (filed as Exhibit11@ the
Registrant's Form 8-K (File No. 1-15885) on Septeni8, 2013), incorporated herein by reference.

11 Statement regarding computation of per share egsnin

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer require¢ Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a).

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer required IRule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a).

32 Certifications of Chief Executive Officer and Chlghancial Officer required by 18 U.S.C. Sectio50.3

95* Mine Safety Disclosure Pursuant to Section 1508{dlhe DoddFrank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protec

Act for the period ending September 27, 2013.

101.INS XBRL Instance Document.

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurhen
101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docutne
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document.
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doenin

*  Previously filed.

35




SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, the registrant has duly causedréport to be signed on its bel
by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

MATERION CORPORATION

Dated: March 14, 2014
/sl John D. Grampa
John D. Grampa
Senior Vice President Finance and
Chief Financial Officer
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Exhibit Index

Amendment No. 4 to Third Amended and Restated BuscMetals Agreement, dated September 13, 2013ng
Materion Corporation and certain of its subsidisiéd The Bank of Nova Scotia (filed as Exhibitl1{. the Registrant
Form 8-K (File No. 1-15885) on September 18, 20iR)rporated herein by reference.

Statement regarding computation of per share egsnin

Certification of Chief Executive Officer require¢ Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a).

Certification of Chief Financial Officer required IRule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a).

Certifications of Chief Executive Officer and Chighancial Officer required by 18 U.S.C. Sectio50.3

Mine Safety Disclosure Pursuant to Section 1508{dlhpe DoddFrank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protectiot
for the period ending September 27, 2013.

XBRL Instance Document.

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurhen
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docutne
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document.

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doenin

*  Previously filed.
# Submitted electronically herewith.
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MATERION CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
COMPUTATION OF PER SHARE EARNINGS

Third Quarter Ended

Exhibit 11

Nine Months Ended

Sept. 27, 2013 Sept. 28, 2012

Sept. 27, 2013

Sept. 28, 2012

(Thousands, except per share amounts) Restated Restated
Basic:
Average shares outstanding 20,60: 20,43: 20,55 20,43«
Net Income $ 499; $ 8,11« $ 1593: $ 22,16
Per share amount $ 024 % 04C $ 0.7¢ % 1.0¢
Diluted:
Average shares outstanding 20,60: 20,43: 20,55 20,43
Dilutive stock securities based on the treasurgkstoethod using
average market price 327 26% 328 20t
Totals 20,93: 20,69: 20,87« 20,63¢
Net Income $ 499;: $ 8,11« $ 1593. $ 22,16:
Per share amount $ 022 $ 03¢ $ 0.7¢ $ 1.07

Stock appreciation rights with exercise pricesxoess of the average market price of common sheataling 485,000 as of
September 27, 2013 and 364,000 as of Septemb2028,were excluded from the diluted EPS calculatas their effect would have been

anti-dilutive.



2)

3)

4)

5)

Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS

I, Richard J. Hipple, certify that:

I have reviewed this quarterly report on Fot®rQ/A of Materion Corporation (the “registrant”);

Based on my knowledge, this report does not coraajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omittde a material fact necess
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisiebding with respect to tl
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements,adiner financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operet and cash flows of the registrant as of, and tfee periods presented in t
report;

The registrang other certifying officer and | are responsible éstablishing and maintaining disclosure contesld procedures (i
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15¢)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchange #
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures ¢tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatiolatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhteubsidiaries, is mau
known to us by others within those entities, paittidy during the period in which this report isirige prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financial répgr or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be designe
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in at@uce with generally accepted accounting princjples

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registsaghitsclosure controls and procedures and presémtbds report our conclusiol
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contot procedures, as of the end of the period couvgyddtlis report based «
such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the stegits internal control over financial reporting thatcooed during th
registrant’'s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabrig that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaf, the registrant’s internal control over finate¢eporting; and

The registran$ other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxh on our most recent evaluation of internal @rdver financia
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitauadmmittee of the registramst’board of directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknsssethe design or operation of internal controkmfinancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect thgistrants ability to record, process, summarize and refioancial
information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involveanagement or other employees who have a significalet in the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

/sl Richard J. Hipple

Dated: March 14, 2014 Richard J. Hipple

Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer



2)

3)

4)

5)

Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS

[, John D. Grampa, certify that:

I have reviewed this quarterly report on Fot®rQ/A of Materion Corporation (the “registrant”);

Based on my knowledge, this report does not coraajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omittde a material fact necess
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisiebding with respect to tl
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements,adiner financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operet and cash flows of the registrant as of, and tfee periods presented in t
report;

The registrang other certifying officer and | are responsible éstablishing and maintaining disclosure contesld procedures (i
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15¢)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchange #
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures ¢tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatiolatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhteubsidiaries, is mau
known to us by others within those entities, paittidy during the period in which this report isirige prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financial répgr or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be designe
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in at@uce with generally accepted accounting princjples

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registsaghitsclosure controls and procedures and presémtbds report our conclusiol
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contot procedures, as of the end of the period couvgyddtlis report based «
such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the stegits internal control over financial reporting thatcooed during th
registrant’'s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabrig that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaf, the registrant’s internal control over finate¢eporting; and

The registran$ other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxh on our most recent evaluation of internal @rdver financia
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitauadmmittee of the registramst’board of directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknsssethe design or operation of internal controkmfinancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect thgistrants ability to record, process, summarize and refioancial
information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involveanagement or other employees who have a significalet in the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

/sl John D. Grampa

Dated: March 14, 2014 John D. Grampa

Senior Vice President Finance and Chief Financfatér



Exhibit 32

Certification Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
As Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adoptedigatrso Section 906 of the Sarbari@dey Act of 2002, in connection with the fili
of the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q/A of Materidarporation (the “Companyfpr the quarter ended September 27, 2013, aswilddthe

Securities and Exchange Commission on the dat@h@he “Report”),each of the undersigned officers of the Compantifiesr that, to suc
officer's knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m
780(d)), and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of -
Company as of the dates and for the periods exgaéashe Report.

Dated: March 14, 2014
/sl Richard J. Hipple

Richard J. Hipple
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

/sl John D. Grampa
John D. Grampa
Senior Vice President Finance and Chief Financfaté&r




